
L:\COF-COMMON\City Council Meetings\2025 Council Staff Reports\6.16.2025 Council Meeting\Regular Meeting\6.19.2025 REGULAR 
AGENDA.doc 

    Regular City Council Meeting 
    7:00 p.m., Monday, June 16, 2025 
    City Council Chambers 
    23600 Liberty Street 
    Farmington, MI 48335 
 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 

1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
4. APPROVAL OF ITEMS ON CONSENT AGENDA 
 A. City of Farmington Minutes 
 B. Farmington Monthly Payments Report 
 C. Farmington Public Safety Monthly Report  
 D. Appoint Abhijit Nikhade to serve a term on the Board of Review 

E. Beautification Committee Reappointments 
   
5. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA 
      
6. PRESENTATION/PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Public Safety Promotions 
 a) Sergeant Jimmy Wren to become a Commander 
 b) Officer Ryan Baessler to become a Sergeant 
B. Commission on Aging – Kathy Marshall 
C. Public Hearing – Fiscal Year 2025-26 Budget and Millage Rates  

  
7. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Consideration to adopt Fiscal Year 2025-26 Budget and establish millage 
rates 

B. Consideration to adopt resolution to amend Residential Refuse/Recycling 
User Charge effective July 1, 2025 

C. Consideration to adopt resolution to amend Water and Sewer Rates, 
effective July 1, 2025 

D. Consideration to amend Employee Administrative Manual and Non-union 
Pay Plan effective July 1, 2025 

E. Consideration to adopt Downtown Development Authority’s Fiscal Year 
2024-25 Budget and establish 2025 Principal Shopping District Special 
Assessment 

F. Consideration to adopt Fiscal Year 2025-26 47th District Court, Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority, Corridor Improvement Authority and Joint 
Agency Budgets 



L:\COF-COMMON\City Council Meetings\2025 Council Staff Reports\6.16.2025 Council Meeting\Regular Meeting\6.19.2025 REGULAR 
AGENDA.doc 

G. Consideration to Amend Grand River Corridor Improvement Authority 
2024-25 Budget 

H. Consideration to Amend Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 2024-25 
Budget 

I. Consideration to Amend Fiscal Year 24-25 Budget 

J. Street Crack sealing/Over band RFP  

K. 2025 Sidewalk Program  

L. SOCPWA Mutual Aid Authority Agreement  

M. Warner Home Improvements – Draw Request 

N. Firefighter Turnout Gear 

O. Avigilon Server/Security Camera 

P. Assessing Contract 

Q. Water Rate Study Contract 
 
8.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
9. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The City will follow its normal procedures for accommodation of persons with disabilities. Those individuals needing 
accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk (248) 474-5500, ext. 2218 at least 
two working days in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 

 



 

 

    Special City Council Meeting 
    6:00 p.m., Monday, May 05, 2025 
    Conference Room 
    23600 Liberty Street 
    Farmington, MI 48335 
 

                                       
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
       

A special meeting of the Farmington City Council was held on May 05, 2025, at 23600 Liberty Street, 
Farmington, MI. Notice of the meeting was posted in compliance with Public Act 267-1976.  
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:59 PM by Mayor LaRussa. 

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Johnna Balk Mayor Pro-Tem Present  

Joe LaRussa Mayor  Present  

Kevin Parkins Councilmember Present  

Steve Schneemann Councilmember Present  

Maria Taylor Councilmember Present  

 
City Administration Present:  
City Manager, David Murphy  
Deputy City Clerk, Sue Alvey  
City Attorney, Beth Saarela 
Executive Director DDA, Jessica Westendorf 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  

Motion by Balk 
Seconded by Taylor 
 
Resolved, move to approve the agenda as presented.   
 
Motion carried unanimously 5-0 

  
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
 No members of the public spoke.     
 
 
4. Closed Session: Confidential Correspondence from City Attorney 
  
 Motion by Taylor  



Minutes Farmington City Council May 05, 2025 

 

 
 2 

 Seconded by Balk  
  

Resolved, move to convene into closed session at 6:04 PM to discuss confidential 
correspondence from City Attorney. 
 
Roll Call Vote:  
Yeas: LaRussa, Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor, Balk 
Nays: None 
Motion carried unanimously 5-0 
 
Motion by Balk 
Seconded by Taylor 
 
Resolved, move to convene back into Open Session at 6:55 PM.  
 
Motion carried unanimously 5-0 

 
 
5. Other Business 
  
 No other business was heard.  
 
 
6. Public Comment 
 
 No members of the public spoke. 
  
7. Council Comments  

 
Balk provided an update regarding Founders Festival. 

  
8. Adjournment 

 
 Motion by Parkins 
 Seconded by Taylor  
 

Resolved, move to adjourn the special meeting at 6:54 PM. 
 
Motion carried unanimously 5-0 
 

 
________________________________ 
Joe LaRussa, Mayor  

 
 
  
Meaghan K. Bachman, City Clerk 



 

 

    City Council Meeting 
    6:00 p.m., Monday, May 05, 2025 
    Conference Room 
    23600 Liberty Street 
    Farmington, MI 48335 
 

                                       
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
       

A special meeting of the Farmington City Council was held on May 05, 2025, at 23600 Liberty Street, 
Farmington, MI. Notice of the meeting was posted in compliance with Public Act 267-1976.  
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:01 PM by Mayor LaRussa. 

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Johnna Balk Mayor Pro-Tem Present  

Joe LaRussa Mayor  Present  

Kevin Parkins Councilmember Present  

Steve Schneemann Councilmember Present  

Maria Taylor Councilmember Present  

 
City Administration Present:  
City Manager, David Murphy  
Deputy City Clerk, Sue Alvey  
City Attorney, Beth Saarela 
Director of Public Safety, Bob Houhanisin 
Treasurer- Finance Director, Jamie Pohlman 
Public Works Superintendent- Chuck Eudy 
 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
 Kristy Mack, member of the HOA Board for the Riverwalk Farmington community surrounding 

Flanders Park spoke in regards to the neighborhood exercise platform project and upkeep of the 
park and presented a petition. 

  
 Kelly Hansen, Letitia Dean, Colleen Wojciechowski, David Brandon, Katrina Cummins, members 

of the HOA Board for the Riverwalk Farmington Community surrounding Flanders Park spoke on 
the exercise platform project at Flanders park.  

 
  
 



Minutes Farmington City Council May 05, 2025 

 

 
 2 

 
4. APPROVAL OF ITEMS ON CONSENT AGENDA 
 Special Event Application: Annual Power Middle School Band Concerts 
  
 Motion by Schneemann 
 Seconded by Balk  
  

Resolved, move to approval the consent agenda as presented. 
 
Motion carried unanimously 5-0 

 
 
5. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA 
  
 Motion by Schneemann 
 Seconded by Balk 
 
 Resolved, move to approve the agenda as presented. 
  
 Motion carried unanimously 5-0 
 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS 
 Resolution for Deer Management Agreement 
  

Motion by Balk 
Seconded by Taylor 

 
Resolved, move to adopt resolution for deer management within the City of Farmington and 
authorize the City Manager to sign written agreements subject to the City Attorney’s final 
review of Agreements as it relates to Deer Management. 

 
Roll Call Vote:  
Yeas: Balk, LaRussa, Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor 
Nays: None 
 
Motion carried unanimously 5-0 

  
  
7. PUBLIC COMMENT  

 
Bob Sebulak commented on the deer management.  
Kelly Hansen, member of the HOA Board for the Riverwalk Farmington Community commented 
on final thoughts regarding the park equipment platform project.  

 
 
 
 



Minutes Farmington City Council May 05, 2025 

 

 
 3 

8. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

Schneemann suggested to put a pause on the equipment platform project at Flanders Park.  
 
Taylor commented on the equipment platform project at Flanders Park and the future for the 
Governor Warner Mansion.  
 
Balk commented on communication with residents and added on to Council member Taylor’s 
comments.  
 
Parkins seconded Schneeman’s comments.  
 
LaRussa commented on communication with residents in regards to upkeeping the parks and 
advised that all feedback can be submitted to the committee for the Parks and Recs Master Plan 
and continued and provided DTE update on outage targets.  

 
 
9.  CLOSED SESSION 
 Discuss Negotiations for Collective Bargaining Agreement 
  
 Motion by Schneemann 

Seconded by Balk 
 
Resolved, to convene into closed session to discuss contract negotiations.  

 
Roll Call Vote:  
Yeas: Balk, LaRussa, Parkins, Schneeman, Taylor 
Nays: None 
Motion carried unanimously 5-0 

  
 Reconvene into Open Session at 8:08 PM.  
  

Motion by Balk 
Seconded by Taylor 

 
Motion carried unanimously 5-0 
 
Vote on Closed Session Item 
 
Motion by Schneeman 
Seconded by Taylor 
 
Resolved, to ratify TPOAM agreement as presented.  
 
Roll Call Vote:  
Yeas: Balk, LaRussa, Parkins, Schneeman, Taylor 
Nays: None 
Motion carried unanimously 5-0 



Minutes Farmington City Council May 05, 2025 

 

 
 4 

 
10. Adjournment 
 
 Motion by Balk 
 Supported by Taylor 
 

Resolved, move to adjourn the regular meeting at 8:18 PM. 
 
Motion carried unanimously 5-0 
 

 
________________________________ 
Joe LaRussa, Mayor  

 
 
  
Sue Alvey, Deputy City Clerk 



    Special City Council Meeting 
    6:00 p.m., May 19, 2025 
    Conference Room 
    23600 Liberty Street 
    Farmington, MI 48335 
 

                                       
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
 

A special meeting of the Farmington City Council was held on May 19, 2025, at 23600 Liberty Street, 
Farmington, MI. Notice of the meeting was posted in compliance with Public Act 267-1976.  
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:01 PM by Mayor Pro Tem Balk. 

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Johnna Balk Mayor Pro-Tem Present  

Joe LaRussa Mayor  Excused  

Kevin Parkins Councilmember Present  

Steve Schneemann Councilmember Present  

Maria Taylor Councilmember Present  

 
City Administration Present:  
City Manager, David Murphy  
City Clerk, Meaghan Bachman  
City Attorney, Beth Saarela 
Assistant City Manager, Chris Weber 
Public Safety Director, Bob Houhanisin 
Finance Director, Jaime Pohlman  
 
 
2. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA 
 

Motion by Taylor 
Seconded by Schneemann 
 
Resolved, move to approve the agenda as presented.   
 
Motion carried unanimously 4-0 

 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
 No members of the public spoke.      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Minutes Farmington City Council May 19, 2025 

 

 
 2 

 
4.  CLOSED SESSION: Discuss Negotiations for Collective Bargaining Agreement 
 

Resolved, move to convene into closed session at 6:04 PM to discuss negotiations for collective 
bargaining agreement.  
 
Roll Call Vote:  
Yeas: LaRussa, Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor, Balk 
Nays: None 
Motion carried unanimously 4-0 
 
Motion by Balk 
Seconded by Taylor 
 
Resolved, move to convene back into Open Session. 
 
Motion carried unanimously 4-0 

 
5. Other Business 
 

No other business was discussed.  
 
6. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

None.  
 
7. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Motion by Schneemann 
 Seconded by Taylor  
 

Resolved, move to adjourn the special meeting at 6:59 p.m. 
 
Motion carried unanimously 

 

 
 
 
________________________________ 
Johnna Balk, Mayor Pro Tem  
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



Minutes Farmington City Council May 19, 2025 

 

 
 3 

 
 
  
Meaghan K. Bachman, City Clerk   

 
 



    City Council Meeting 
    7:00 p.m., May 19, 2025 

    23600 Liberty Street 
    Farmington, MI 48335 

 

                                       
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 

A meeting of the Farmington City Council was held on May 19, 2025, at 23600 Liberty Street, 
Farmington, Michigan. Notice of the meeting was posted in compliance with Public Act 267-1976.  
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:03 PM by Mayor Pro-Tem Balk.    

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Johnna Balk Mayor Pro-Tem Present  
Joe LaRussa Mayor  Excused  
Kevin Parkins Councilmember Present  
Steve Schneemann Councilmember Present  
Maria Taylor Councilmember Present  

 
City Administration Present:  
City Manager, David Murphy  
Assistant City Manager, Chris Weber 
Assistant to the City Manager, Melissa Andrade 
Public Safety Director, Bob Houhanisin 
City Clerk, Meaghan Bachman  
City Treasurer, Jaime Pohlman  
DPW Superintendent, Chuck Eudy 
City Attorney, Beth Saarela 

 
 
2.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
 Michelle DiMaria of 6125 St. James Drive, West Bloomfield spoke regarding deer culling 

concerns.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Minutes Farmington City Council May 19, 2025 

 

 
  

 
4. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 
  

Motion by Taylor 
Seconded by Schneemann 
 
Resolved, move to approve the consent agenda as presented:  
 
A. City of Farmington Minutes 
B. Farmington Monthly Payments Report 
C. Farmington Public Safety Monthly Report 
D. Court Quarterly Financial Report 
 
Motion carried unanimously 4-0 

 
 
5. APPROVAL OF THE REGULAR AGENDA 
  

Motion by Schneemann 
Seconded by Taylor  
 
Resolved, move to approve the regular agenda as presented.  
 
Motion carried unanimously 4-0 

 
 
6.  PRESENTATION/PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
 a. Swearing in of Public Safety Officers Jonah Fanning and Jackson Murray 
 

 
7. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. 9 Mile Retention Environmental Quality Basin 
 

Motion by Schneemann  
Seconded by Parkins  
 
Resolved, move to approve payment to Oakland County Water Resource Commission in 
the amount of $13,257.13 for the 9 Mile Retention Environmental Quality Basin Electrical 
Service Equipment Repair Project. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yeas: Balk, Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor 
Nays: None 

 Motion carried unanimously 4-0 
 
 



Minutes Farmington City Council May 19, 2025 

 

 
  

 
 

b. Consideration to Amend Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget 
 

Motion by Parkins 
Seconded by Taylor  
 
Resolved, move to approve resolution amending Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yeas: Parkins, Schneemann, Taylor, Balk  
Nays: None 
Motion carried unanimously 4-0 
 
c. Consideration to Approve Certified 2025 Delinquent False Alarm Fees, Water and 

Sewer Bills, and Invoices for Placement on Tax Roll. 
 

Motion by Taylor 
Seconded by Schneemann 
 
Resolved, move to approve the presented lists of delinquent false alarm fees, water and 
sewer bills, and invoices for placement on the Farmington Tax Roll pursuant to City Code. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yeas: Schneemann, Taylor, Balk, Parkins 
Nays: None 
Motion carried unanimously 4-0 
 

 
8. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

No members of the public spoke.  
 
 
9. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS   
 

No members of the Council spoke.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Minutes Farmington City Council May 19, 2025 

 

 
  

 
10. Adjournment 
 
 Motion by Schneemann 
 Seconded by Taylor  
 

Resolved, move to adjourn the meeting at 7:27 p.m. 
 
Motion carried unanimously 4-0 
 
 
 

 
________________________________ 
Joe LaRussa, Mayor    

 
 
  
Meaghan K. Bachman, City Clerk  

 











Farmington Public Safety Department 

Public Safety Director Bob Houhanisin 

 
 
 
 

 23600 LIBERTY STREET, FARMINGTON MICHIGAN 48335 | PHONE: (248) 474-4700 | FAX: (248) 442-9815  

 

 

May 2025 Public Safety Incidents 
 
 

Assist Other Agency 
On 05/09/2025 at approximately 07:48 PM Farmington Public Safety Officers were dispatched to the 
area of Farmington High School for a possible missing juvenile.  Officers met with a concerned parent 
from a neighboring jurisdiction who advised that their child had been gone for about three hours and 
not answering their phone.  The reporting party advised that their child was not where they were 
supposed to be, and their phone is now shut off.  Using the phones’ location the parents were 
concerned that the phone was last observed in the City of Farmington near the high school.  Officers 
used investigative resources to locate the missing subject who was found safe in a nearby home.  
 
Structure Fire 
On 05/10/2025 Farmington Public Safety responded to a report of a structure fire on Hawthorne St.  
Dispatch advised that there were reports of heavy smoke and flames visible.  Farmington Engine 2 
arrived on scene reporting the deck was on fire with heat damage to the homes siding.  Farmington 
Public Safety extinguished the fire using tank water.  No injuries were reported. 
 
Larceny   
On 05/16/2025 at approximately 7:00 PM officers were dispatched to a late report of a larceny in the 
33200 block of Freedom. The victim, an 87-year-old female reported that she left some property in a 
bag sitting in the common area of her apartment building. When she later went to get the items, they 
were gone. Currently, there are no suspects. The case has been forwarded to the detective bureau for 
investigation.     
 
OWI 3rd Offense  
On 05/15/2025 at approximately 7:00 PM officers on routine patrol conducted a traffic stop of a vehicle 
that was unable to maintain its lane. A subsequent investigation led to the arrest of the driver, a 31-
year-old female for OWI 3rd offense. The case has been forwarded to the Oakland County Prosecutors 
office for warrant consideration. The suspect was held until sober and released.   
 
 
MDOP 
On 05/20/2025 at approximately 11:30 AM officers were dispatched to the 23600 block of Farmington 
Rd for a reported malicious destruction of property report. Officers met with the victim, a 39-year-old 
female who reported that she parked her vehicle in a parking lot earlier in the day. When she returned, 
she found a long key mark along the passenger side of her vehicle. The victim does not know who might 
have caused the damage. The area was canvassed for cameras, and no security cameras were found that 
had captured the incident. Currently there are no leads on a possible suspect.  
 
 



 
 
 
 

 23600 LIBERTY STREET, FARMINGTON MICHIGAN 48335 | PHONE: (248) 474-4700 | FAX: (248) 442-9815  

OWI & Open Container  
On 05/20/2025 at approximately 07:30 AM officers took a front desk report where the victim states that 
his credit card was used fraudulently totaling 4 transactions. The victim, a 35-year-old male reported 
that the retailer where the card was used is investigating the incidents. Currently there are no lead on 
possible suspect information and the case has been forwarded to the detective bureau for investigation.    
 
Flee and Elude   
On 05/29/2025 at approximately 10:45 PM an officer attempted to conduct a traffic stop of a 
motorcycle on Orchard Lake near Shiawassee. The motorcycle ran from the officer in an attempt to flee 
the stop. Officers gave a short chase when the motorcycle lost control and crashed. The suspect, a 22 
year old male, was apprehended by officers and released to the hospital pending warrant presentation 
to the Oakland County Prosecutors office.   
 
OWI & Open Container  
On 06/01/2025 at approximately 01:30 AM officers on patrol stopped to conduct a welfare check on a 
vehicle stopped in the right hand turn lane of Grand River Ave east of Halsted. Officers made contact 
with the driver of the vehicle and conducted an OWI investigation. Officers also noted an open and ½ 
full bottle of liquor in the rear seat of the vehicle. The investigation led to the arrest of the driver, a 55-
year-old female for open container and OWI. She was held until sober and released. The case has been 
forwarded to the prosecutors office.   
 

 

 

 

CALL TYPE & QUANTITY 

TOTAL CALLS TRAFFIC STOPS MEDICALS FIRE CALLS CRASHES 

665 268 68 11 22 
 

OWI OUID DWLS WARRANT FELONY 

4 0 7 14 2 

 



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: July 16.2025 

Item 
Number 

4D 

Submitted by: Melissa Andrade, Assistant to the City Manager 
Agenda Topic: Appointment to the Board of Review 
Consent Agenda: Appoint Abhijit Nikhade to the Farmington Board of Review to a 3-year term 
ending December 31, 2028. 
 

Background:  City Council interviewed Abhijit Nikhade for a seat on the Farmington Downtown 
Development Authority on Jan. 16, 2024. He was not appointed to that seat. Abhijit indicated he 
was interested in other commission in his application. There is a vacancy on the Farmington 
Board of Review. Abhijit spoke with Oakland County Assessor Julian Emerson to learn about 
the duties of a Review Board member and would like to serve in this capacity. Julian overseas 
this board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Materials:  
 



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: June 16, 2025 

Item 
Number 

4E 

Submitted by: Melissa Andrade, Assistant to the City Manager 
Agenda Topic: Farmington Beautification Committee Reappointments 
Consent Agenda:  Reappoint Mike DeMott and Kasandra Mullen to serve another term on the 
Farmington Beautification Committee. This 3-year term will be up on June 30, 2028.  
 

Background:  Both committee members indicated they’d like to remain on the committee. This 
is supported by Chair Carley Brandreth.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Materials:  
 



 
 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date:  June 16, 2025 

Reference 
Number 

6C 

Submitted by:  David Murphy, City Manager 
 
Agenda Topic:  Public Hearing – Fiscal Year 2025-26 Budget and Millage Rates 
 
Proposed Motion:    
 
Open public hearing: accept comments from the public; close public hearing. 
 
Background    
 
On April 23, 2025 City Manager presented the 2025-2026 proposed budget to City Council. The 
City Manager provided a brief overview highlighting the proposed budget, including: 

• The City is maintaining it’s high quality services 
• The City’s overall millage rate is decreasing due to the headlee rollback 
• Water and Sewer rates are increasing 5.7% to cover increases in GLWA 

water and sewer charges as well as providing additional funding for capital 
improvements 

• Continued ambulance service through Farmington Hills 
 
The Budget includes significant capital purchases and improvements such as:  

• Public Safety Vehicles 
• Fire Apparatus Maintenance 
• DPW Roof 
• Mansion Repairs 
• Pathway to Shiawassee 
• Downtown Parking Lot 
• Caddell Drain Project 
• Gill and Freedom Road 
• Sidewalk Projects 
• Rapid Flashing Beacons 
• Sewer Lining 
• Art Park Promenade 

 
Subsequent to the budget presentation, the allocation of the Capital Improvement Millage Fund 
levy was changed. Originally the allocation was 1.3909 mills to the Capital Improvement Millage 
Fund and 1.3909 mills to the General Fund. The new allocation is 2.0000 mills to the Capital 
Improvement Millage Fund and .7818 mills to the General Fund.  
 
At the June 2, 2025 meeting, City Council scheduled a public hearing for the proposed Fiscal 
Year 2025-26 budget and millage rates.  

 
 



 
 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: June 16, 2025 

Reference 
Number 

7A 

Submitted by:  David Murphy, City Manager 
 
Description   Consideration to Adopt Fiscal Year 2025-26 Budget and Establish Millage Rates 
 
Requested Action   Move to adopt resolution regarding Fiscal Year 2025-26 Budget and Millage 
Rates. 
 
Background   The City Manager submitted the Proposed Fiscal Year 2025-26 Budget at the April 
21, 2025 Council meeting as required by the City Charter.  The City Council reviewed the 
proposed budget at the April 23, 2025 study session.   

 
As required by the City Charter and the Uniform Budgeting and Accounting Act, the City Council 
scheduled a budget and millage public hearing with the proposed overall millage rate set at 
18.1618 mills.  The public notice was published in the Oakland Press and posted on the City’s 
website.   
 
Included with this report is a summary of the overall fund budgets.  The amounts in the resolution 
can be changed prior to the adoption of the budget.  In addition, the resolution contains language 
to levy a total of 18.1618 mills, with 14.2318 mills for General Operating, 0.5500 for Capital 
Improvements, 2.0000 mills for Capital Improvements Millage Fund and 1.3800 mills for Road 
Improvement.   
 
On April 23, 2025 Administration presented the 2025-2026 proposed budget to City Council. 
Subsequent to the presentation, the allocation of the Capital Improvement Millage Fund levy was 
changed. Originally  the allocation was 1.3909 mills to the Capital Improvement Millage Fund and 
1.3909 mills to the General Fund. The new allocation is 2.0000 mills to the Capital Improvement 
Millage Fund and .7818 mills to the General Fund.  
 
 
 

MATERIALS: 
Budget Adoption Resolution 2025-2026 

 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Treasurer is hereby directed to spread taxes on real and personal property in the

amount of one dollar and thirty eight hundredths ($1.3800) per thousand dollars of Taxable Value to collect the 1994 voter

approved, dedicated millage for road improvements; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that property tax payments which have been deferred in accordance with State of Michigan

Statutes may be unpaid until February 28 without penalty; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City shall collect a one percent (1%) administration fee on all taxes collected by the City;

and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all summer taxes unpaid as of September 1 will incur a 1% collection fee and interest will be

charged at the rate of 1% per month in accordance with the provisions of the City Charter; and, that all winter taxes unpaid as of

February 15 through the last day of February shall be assessed a three percent (3%) penalty in accordance with the provisions of

the State of Michigan Statutes; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following sums are hereby appropriated as the budget for the City of Farmington for fiscal

year 2025-2026, beginning July 1, 2025 and ending June 30, 2026:

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Farmington City Council hereby adopts the FY 2025-26 budget as shown in the

proposed FY 2025-26 budget document and including such changes to the proposed budget as approved by Council; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Treasurer is hereby authorized to pay all claims and accounts properly chargeable to

the appropriations contained in the FY 2025-26 budget, as may be amended by the Council from time to time, provided that said

claims and accounts have been lawfully incurred and approved by Council or any other elected or appointed officer of the City

authorized to make such expenditures; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that to meet the requirements for budgeted appropriations for the General Fund the City Treasurer

is hereby directed to spread taxes on real and personal property in the amount of thirteen dollars and forty five hundredths

($13.4500) per thousand dollars of Taxable Value to collect the charter authorized millage; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that to meet the requirements for budgeted appropriations for the General Fund the City Treasurer

is hereby directed to spread taxes on real and personal property in the amount of seven thousand eight hundred eighteen ten

thousandths ($0.7818) per thousand dollars of Taxable Value to collect the 2018 voter approved millage; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Treasurer is hereby directed to spread taxes on real and personal property in the

amount of two dollars ($2.0000) per thousand dollars of Taxable Value to collect the 2018 voter approved, dedicated millage for

capital improvements; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that to meet the requirements for budgeted appropriations for the Capital Improvement Fund the

City Treasurer is hereby directed to spread taxes on real and personal property in the amount of fifty five hundredths ($0.5500)

per thousand dollars of Taxable Value to collect the charter authorized millage; and

CITY OF FARMINGTON

RESOLUTION ____________________

Motion by,_______________seconded by,__________________, to adopt the following resolution:               

WHEREAS, the City Manager has presented to the Council a proposed budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2025 in

accordance with the provisions of the City Charter; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has held public hearings in accordance with the provisions of the State Constitution and Statutes

and the City Charter; now 



Beginning Fund Balance (Projected) 3,949,095$              

Revenues

Property Taxes 6,719,875$              

Licenses & Permits 386,325                   

Federal Grants 30,431                     

State Shared Revenues 1,556,249                

Charges For Services 2,351,068                

Fines & Forfeits 380,000                   

Other Revenues 515,472                   

Transfer, Capital Improvement Fund 257,600                   

Total Revenues 12,197,020$            

Expenditures

General Government 2,635,395$              

47th District Court 536,604                   

Public Safety 5,819,263                

Public Works 1,581,194                

Health & Welfare 7,490                       

Community & Economic Development 102,612                   

Recreation & Cultural 998,516                   

Contingency 20,000                     

Transfer, Debt 746,823                   

Transfer, Theater 100,000                   

Total Expenditures 12,547,897$            

Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures (350,877)$                

Ending Fund Balance 3,598,218$              

GENERAL FUND



MAJOR STREET FUND: LOCAL STREET FUND:

Beginning Fund Balance (Projected) 852,183$            Beginning Fund Balance (Projected) 130,634$            

Revenues Revenues

State Shared Revenue 941,076$            State Shared Revenue 397,043$            

Contracts 135,834              Other Revenues 22,250                

Other Revenues 31,941                Transfer, Municipal Street Fund 40,000                

Transfer, Municipal Street Fund 570,000              Transfer, Major Street Fund 470,000              

Total Revenues 1,678,851$         Total Revenues 929,293$            

Expenditures Expenditures

Construction 1,241,750$         Construction 613,500$            

Operation & Maintenance 416,863              Operation & Maintenance 345,664              

Transfer, Local Street Fund 470,000              Total Expenditures 959,164$            

Debt Service 133,913              

Total Expenditures 2,262,526$         

Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures (583,675)$           Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures (29,871)$             

Ending Fund Balance 268,508$            Ending Fund Balance 100,763$            

MUNICIPAL STREET FUND:

Beginning Fund Balance (Projected) 314,122$                 

Revenues

Property Taxes 632,962$                 

State Shared Revenue 5,895                       

Other Revenues 20,000                     

Total Revenues 658,857$                 

Expenditures

Transfer, Major Street Fund 570,000$                 

Transfer, Local Street Fund 40,000                     

Total Expenditures 610,000$                 

Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures 48,857$                   

Ending Fund Balance 362,979$                 

STREET FUNDS 



OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUND:

Beginning Fund Balance (Projected) 48,211$                   

Revenues
Opioid Settlement Revenue 16,000$                   

Other Revenue 1,200                       

Total Revenues 17,200$                   

Expenditures

Opioid Mitigation 40,030$                   

Total Expenditures 40,030$                   

Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures (22,830)$                  

Ending Fund Balance 25,381$                   

AMERICAN RESCUE ACT FUND:

Beginning Fund Balance (Projected) 15,498$                   

Revenues

Federal Grants 70,000$                   
Other Revenue 450                          

Total Revenues 70,450$                   

Expenditures

Salaries, Full Time, Officers 70,000$                   

Total Expenditures 70,000$                   

Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures 450$                        

Ending Fund Balance 15,948$                   

OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

Beginning Fund Balance (Projected) 514,721$                 

Revenues

Property Taxes 249,108$                 

Investment Income 20,000                     

Total Revenues 269,108$                 

Expenditures

Transfer, General Fund 257,600$                 

Total Expenditures 257,600$                 

Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures 11,508$                   

Ending Fund Balance 526,229$                 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT MILLAGE FUND

Beginning Fund Balance (Projected) 1,274,727$              

Revenues

Property Taxes 905,849$                 

State Shared Revenue and Grants 3,005,047                

Investment Income 19,721                     

DDA Contribution 102,422                   

Total Revenues 4,033,039$              

Expenditures

Capital Outlay 4,626,580$              

Debt 405,310                   

Total Expenditures 5,031,890$              

Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures (998,851)$                

Ending Fund Balance 275,876$                 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS



WATER & SEWER FUND:

Beginning Fund Balance (Projected) 1,394,608$              

Revenues

Water & Sewer Sales 6,056,094$              

Other Revenues 315,136                   

Bond Proceeds 2,500,000                

Total Revenues 8,871,230$              

Expenditures

Operations & Maintenance 5,212,367$              

Capital Outlay 2,697,902                

Debt, Principal and Interest 664,674                   

Transfer, OPEB Debt Service 39,306                     

Total Expenditures 8,614,249$              

Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures 256,981$                 

Ending Fund Balance 1,651,589$              

FARMINGTON CIVIC THEATER FUND:

Beginning Fund Balance (Projected) (105,578)$                

Revenues

Admissions/Rentals/Concessions 409,205$                 

Other Revenues 9,708                       

Transfer, General Fund 100,000                   

Transfer, Capital Improvement Fund -                               

Total Revenues: 518,913$                 

Expenditures

Operations & Maintenance 515,063$                 

Debt Service 3,850                       

Capital Outlay -                               

Total Expenditures 518,913$                 

Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures -$                             

Ending Fund Balance (105,578)$                

ENTERPRISE FUNDS



NONVOTED DEBT SERVICE FUND: STREETSCAPE DEBT SERVICE FUND

Beginning Fund Balance (Projected) 2,942$                Beginning Fund Balance (Projected) -$                        

Revenues Revenues

Transfer, General Fund -$                        DDA Contribution 71,693$              

Total Revenues -$                        Total Revenues 71,693$              

Expenditures Expenditures

Maxfield Training Center Installment -$                        Bonds, Principal 65,000$              

Total Expenditures -$                        Bonds, Interest 6,393                  

Bonds, Paying Agent 300                     

Total Expenditures 71,693$              

Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures -                          Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures -$                        

Ending Fund Balance 2,942$                Ending Fund Balance -$                        

GROVE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DEBT SERVICE FUND OPEB DEBT SERVICE FUND

Beginning Fund Balance (Projected) 49,082$              Beginning Fund Balance (Projected) 34,256$              

Revenues Revenues

DDA Contribution 32,550                Transfer, General Fund 746,823$            

Other Revenues 1,500                  Transfer, Water & Sewer 39,306                

Total Revenues 34,050$              Other Revenues 1,000                  

Total Revenues 787,129$            

Expenditures Expenditures

Bonds, Principal 20,000$              Bonds, Principal 635,000$            

Bonds, Interest 12,300                Bonds, Interest 150,079              
Bonds, Paying Agent 250                     Bonds, Paying Agent 1,050                  

Total Expenditures 32,550$              Total Expenditures 786,129$            

Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures 1,500$                Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures 1,000$                

Ending Fund Balance 50,582$              Ending Fund Balance 35,256$              

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS



EMPLOYEE ACCRUED BENEFITS FUND SELF INSURANCE FUND:

Beginning Fund Balance (Projected) 59,958$              Beginning Fund Balance (Projected) 294,457$            

Revenues Revenues

Charges to Other Funds 10,000$              Charges to Other Funds 216,769$            

Other Revenues 20,000                Other Revenues 47,420                

Total Revenues: 30,000$              Total Revenues 264,189$            

Expenditures

Expenditures Claims Expense 53,272$              

Salaries, Accrued Benefits 10,000$              Admin and Reinsurance 216,769              

Total Expenditures 10,000$              Total Expenditures 270,041$            

Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures 20,000$              Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures (5,852)$               

Ending Fund Balance 79,958$              Ending Fund Balance 288,605$            

DPW EQUIPMENT REVOLVING FUND

Beginning Fund Balance (Projected) 419,020$                 

Revenues

Equipment Rental 576,679$                 

Other Revenues 18,151                     

Total Revenues 594,830$                 

Expenditures

Operations & Maintenance 355,502$                 

Capital Outlay 408,185                   

Total Expenditures 763,687$                 

Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures (168,857)$                

Ending Fund Balance 250,163$                 

ROLL CALL:

MEAGHAN BACHMAN, CITY CLERK

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager shall prepare for the Council a financial report each quarter on the status of

City funds as contained within the City budget.

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS



 
 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting Date:  
June 16, 2025 

Reference 
Number 

7B 
 

Submitted by:  David Murphy, City Manager 
 
Description   Consideration to Adopt Resolution to Amend Residential Refuse/Recycling User 
Charge 
 
Requested Action   Move to adopt resolution to amend Residential Refuse/Recycling User 
Charge effective July 1, 2025 
 
Background    
 
The Refuse/recycling user charge is structured to cover the full cost of residential refuse 
collection, yard waste collection, recycling, the household hazardous waste collection program, 
RRRASOC administrative costs, and the cost associated with the fall leaf collection program.  
The charge would be placed on the July and December tax bills for residential units.   
 
The following 188 condominium units do not receive the leaf collection service in the Fall: Tana 
Hill (6), Adams Manor (6), Pinewoods (40), Winset (55), Tall Pines (3), and Heritage Village 
(78). The following 37 multijurisdictional housing developments do not receive leaf collection in 
the Fall:  Mission Court/Lane (12), Lark Harbor Court (14), Woodhaven Court (3), Fairview Court 
(5), Freedom Road (3).  As a result, a separate fee is charged that excludes the leaf collection 
costs for these 225 units.  The attached resolution includes this separate charge. 
 
Chapter 16 of the City Code contains a provision which allows the City Clerk to waive the 
recycling fee based on applications verifying economic hardship or permanent physical 
handicap.  Each year, the clerk receives five or six such applications.  The contract with Waste 
Management does not provide a per unit cost breakdown for the solid waste, recycling 
collection, and yard waste services.  Therefore, City Administration has estimated the cost of the 
recycling fee and waiver to be $160.76 
 
 
 
 
 
Materials: Resolution 

 



RESOLUTION 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE FARMINGTON CITY COUNCIL AMENDING RESIDENTIAL 
REFUSE/RECYLING USER FEE, AMENDING A REFUSE/RECYCLING FEE WITHOUT 
THE LEAF COLLECTION PROGRAM, AND AMENDING THE DOLLAR AMOUNT 
SUBJECT TO THE RECYCLING WAIVER, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025. 
 
WHEREAS, the Farmington City Council is authorized by Section 16-34 of the Code of 

Ordinances to establish a residential user fee to defray the City’s costs for  
providing solid waste collection and disposal, recycling collection and 
processing, recycling administration, yard waste collection and processing, 
leaf collection and processing, and household hazardous waste collection 
and processing services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Farmington contracts with Waste Management, Inc. to provide 

solid waste collection, yard waste collection, and recycling collection 
services for residential customers in the City, for which the City pays a 
contractual fee; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Farmington has agreed to deliver recycled materials to the facility 

owned by the Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest 
Oakland County (RRRASOC); and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Farmington, along with other participating communities, 

contracts with RRRASOC to administer the recycling facility and other 
recycling programs in exchange for a fee paid to RRRASOC; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Farmington participates in the Household Hazardous Waste 

Collection Program administered by RRRASOC; and 
 
WHEREAS, as part of the City’s recycling program, each fall the Farmington Department 

of Public Works collects and disposes of leaves raked to the curb by 
residents; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Refuse/Recycling User Fee is intended to defray the City’s expenses in 

providing these services to its residents as estimated in the Fiscal Year 
2025-26 Budget, effective July 1, 2025; and 

 
WHEREAS,  there are 2,765 residential units that currently receive all of the 

refuse/recycling services within the City of Farmington; and  
 
WHEREAS, there are 188 condominium units that receive all of the refuse/recycling 

services except for the leaf collection program; and  
 



WHEREAS,  there are 37 homes in small residential developments that have houses built 
in both Farmington and Farmington Hills and providing leaf collection 
services in these multijurisdictional developments would be impractical; and 

 
WHEREAS,  in accordance with the preceding, the user fee would be based on the costs 

incurred by the City for the 2025-26 fiscal year in accordance with the 
following: 

 
           Annual Per Unit 
           Budget       Cost 

Waste Management Service Contract  $591,388 $ 197.79 
 Recycling Administration        22,992              7.69 
 Hazardous Waste Collection and Services            31,000            10.37 
 Other Operating Expenses        77,752      26.00  
  Total      $723,132 $ 241.85  
  
WHEREAS, the unit price for residential units receiving leaf collection program service 

is $51.72 based on a budgeted cost of $143,005.80 for Fiscal Year 2025-
26 and 2,765 residential units; and  

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 16, Garbage and Rubbish, of the City Code permits a waiver of the 

recycling fee based on economic hardship requirements specified in 
Section 16-34.5 or disability as contained in Section 16-27.5; and 

 
WHEREAS, City Administration is recommending that the amount for the recycling 

economic hardship waiver be $160.76. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Farmington City Council hereby 

establishes a residential refuse/recycling user fees and recycling waiver 
amount as indicated below, effective July 1, 2025: 

 
1. Residential Refuse/Recycling fee - $293.57 with $146.79 levied with the 

July 2025 tax bill and $146.78 on the December 2025 tax bill 
 

2. Residential Refuse/Recycling Fee, Condominiums and multijurisdictional 
developments without Leaf Collection Program - $241.85 with $120.93 
levied with the July 2025 tax bill and $120.92 levied on the December 2025 
tax bill. 

 
3. The amount to be waived from the user fee for those residents qualifying 

for the recycling waiver under Section 16-34.5 or the disability waiver 
pursuant to 16.27-5 of the City Code is $160.76. 

 
 

 
 



AYES: 
 
NAYES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTENTIONS: 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 

 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 
Resolution adopted by the City of Farmington City Council at a regular 
meeting held on June 16, 2025.  
      

 
__________________________ 
Meaghan Bachman, City Clerk 



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: June 16, 2025 

Item 
Number 

7C 

Submitted by:  David Murphy, City Manager 
Agenda Topic   Consideration to Adopt a Resolution to Amend Water and Sewer Rates 
Effective July 1, 2025 
 
Proposed Motion:  Move to adopt a resolution amending Chapter 11 of the City Fee Schedule, 
as presented, which amends the water and sewer rates, effective July 1, 2025. 

Background:    
 
The Great Lakes Water Authority (GLWA) increased the rates it charges the City of Farmington 
by 5.68% for Water and 4.31% for Sewer.  The proposed amendment to the fee schedule 
increases the rates Farmington charges to its customers by 5.7% for Water and 5.7% for Sewer.  
The additional increase is proposed to provide additional funding for capital improvements to the 
system.   
 
The rates will change as follows: 
 Rates Effective 

7/1/24 
Rates Effective 
7/1/25 

Water Consumption 
Charge (per 1,000 
gallons) 

  $6.59   $6.96 

Water Fixed Charge 
(per quarter) 

$38.67 $40.86 
 

Sewer Consumption 
Charge 
(per 1,000 gallons) 

$8.30 $8.77 

Sewer Fixed Charge 
(per quarter) 

$45.61 $48.20 

 
For an average user using 11,000 gallons per quarter, they will see an increase of $14.02 per 
quarter. 
 
City Administration is recommending that the City Council adopt the attached resolution 
amending Chapter 11 of the City Fee Schedule, as presented.  This resolution amends the 
water and sewer rates, effective July 1, 2025.  Customer bills would not increase until the 
September utility bill. 
 
Materials: 
Resolution to Amend Water and Sewer Rates 
Chapter 11 of Fee Schedule 

 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
CITY OF FARMINGTON 

 
RESOLUTION No. ______________ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE FARMINGTON CITY COUNCIL AMENDING THE 
WATER AND SEWER RATES, QUARTERLY GREAT LAKES WATER 
AUTHORITY (GLWA) FIXED WATER AND SEWER CHARGES, AND 
QUARTERLY INDUSTRIAL WASTE CHARGES AND INDUSTRIAL 
SURCHARGES, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025. 

 
Motion by _______, seconded by _________, to adopt the following resolution: 

 
WHEREAS, the City received notification from the GLWA and Oakland County 

regarding proposed increased rates that will be charged for 
wastewater treatment and potable water that will impact the Fiscal 
Year 2025-26 Water and Sewer Fund Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, the i ncrease in  wastewater treatment rates w i l l  be  4 .31% and 

t h e  i n c re a s e  i n  wa t e r  rates will be 5.68% for the Fiscal Year 
2025-26; and 

 
WHERAS, the City received notification from the GLWA and Oakland County 

regarding the increased rates associated with the Industrial Waste 
Charges and Industrial Surcharges; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Manager’s Proposed Fiscal Year 2025-26 Budget addressed 

the need to increase the water and sewer rates, the quarterly 
GLWA Fixed Water and Sewer Charges, and the quarterly Industrial 
Waste Charges and Industrial Surcharges in order to maintain the 
existing level of services and financial integrity of the Water and 
Sewer Fund. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Farmington City Council hereby 

amends the City Fee Schedule, Chapter 11 – Water and Sewer 
Rates, effective July 1, 2025 as attached and made part of this 
resolution: 

 
Chapter 11, Water and Sewer Rates 

 
ROLL CALL 
Ayes:  
Nays:  
Absent: 
 
 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED        ___________________________________ 
           Meaghan Bachman, City Clerk 

 
 















 
 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting Date:  
June 16, 2025 

Reference 
Number 

7D 

Submitted by:  David Murphy, City Manager 
Description   Consideration to Amend Employee Administrative Manual and Non-Union Pay 
Plan 
Requested Action   Move to adopt resolution amending employee administrative manual and 
non-union pay plan, effective July 1, 2025 
Background    
 
City Administration is recommending that the City Council amend the employee administrative 
manual and non-union pay plan, effective July 1, 2025.  Listed below are the specific 
amendments and the rationale behind the proposed change.  All of the proposed changes are 
contained in the Fiscal Year 2024-25 or 2025-26 Budgets.  Funds are available for the proposed 
changes. 
 

1. Amend Non-Union Pay Plan (attached) – The pay plan provides an across the board 
3.00% increase.  
 

2. Amend Payout of Sick and Gap upon separation  - Currently, as of June 30th of each 
year, employees are compensated for 40% of their unused sick leave balance their 
hourly rate on June 30th. The remaining unused sick hours are transferred to the 
employee’s Gap bank. The Gap bank is a long term leave bank that can only be used for 
specific purposes such as disability supplement, and Family Medical Leave. There is 
currently no payout from the accrued Gap bank at separation of employment.  
 
The proposed change would mirror the agreement with the COAM and would freeze the 
Gap bank as of June 30, 2025. No new hours will be added to the Gap Bank. Upon 
separation, employees shall be paid at the employee’s final pay rate: 

a) Fifty (50%) of accrued, unused sick leave hours up to a maximum of nine 
hundred sixty (960) hours (960 x 50%); and  

b) Thirty-three (33%) of accrued, unused Gap bank hours.  
 

3.  Short-term Disability Waiting Period –  Currently, Short Term Disability begins the 1st day 
following a non-duty illness or injury when an employee is unable to work for more than 2 
weeks (10 regularly scheduled work days).  
 
The proposed change would mirror the agreements with the COAM and the TPOAM. For 
illnesses, coverage shall begin on the 14th calendar day of absence; for injuries, coverage 
shall begin on the 7th calendar day of absence.  
 

Attachments: 
Resolution Amend Pay Plan and Administrative Manual 2025-26 
2025 Non-Union Pay Plan 
 

 



RESOLUTION 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE FARMINGTON CITY COUNCIL AMENDING THE NON-
UNION PAY PLAN AND AMENDING THE EMPLOYEE ADMINISTRATIVE MANUAL.   
 
WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2025-26 Budget provided a 3.00% increase for all non-

union employees which is proposed for the non-union pay plan as 
attached; and 

 
WHEREAS,  currently the City has a non-standard treatment for the compensation of 

unused sick leave; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the City has certain Union groups that have negotiated the compensation 

of unused sick leave to reflect common industry standards; and 
 
WHEREAS, Administration would like to convert all employee groups to a similar 

method for the compensation of unused sick leave; and  
 
WHEREAS,  allowing for the accumulation of a sick leave bank makes it less necessary 

to cover Short Term Disability on the 1st day of a non-duty injury or illness; 
and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Farmington City Council hereby 

amends the Non-Union Pay Plan and Administrative Manual as provided 
below.   

 
1. Amend Non-Union Pay Plan as attached and made part of this resolution 

increasing wages by 3.00%.  
 

2. Amend the Employee Administrative Manual for Non-Union Employees to state 
that effective July 1, 2025, the Gap Bank shall be frozen and no new hours shall 
be added to an employee’s Gap Bank.  Upon separation, an employee shall be 
paid, at the employee’s final pay rate, thirty-three percent (33%) of accrued, 
unused Gap Bank hours. 
 

3. Amend the Employee Administrative Manual for Non-Union Employees to state 
that effective July 1, 2025 employees will be paid out fifty percent (50%) of 
accrued, unused sick leave hours up to a maximum of nine hundred sixty (960) 
hours (960 x 50%) upon Normal or Disability retirement.  
 

4. Amend the Employee Administrative Manual for Non-Union Employees to 
change the waiting period for Short Term Disability. For illnesses, coverage shall 
begin on the 14th calendar day of absence.  For injuries, coverage shall begin on 
the 7th calendar day of absence.  
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  



 
ROLL CALL 
Ayes:  
Nays:  
Absent:  
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 
I, Meaghan Bachman, duly authorized Clerk for the City of Farmington, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted by the Farmington City Council at a regular meeting held on Monday, 
June 16, 2025 in the City of Farmington, Oakland County, Michigan. 

 
CITY OF FARMINGTON 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Meaghan Bachman, City Clerk 
 



NON-UNION PAY PLAN
3.0% INCREASE EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025

Maximum Maximum Maximum Maximum
From To 1 Year 2 Years 3 Years 4 Years

      
Pay Grade 1

Public Safety Director 111,551 117,127 120,641 124,262 127,990 131,830
Director of Finance and Administration       

Pay Grade 2
Public Works Superintendent 100,641 105,673 108,844 112,108 115,471 118,936
Planning & Building Director       
Public Safety Deputy Director       

Pay Grade 3
City Clerk 87,184 91,223 93,958 96,779 99,681 102,670

Pay Grade 4
Controller 75,464 79,239 81,614 84,062 86,584 89,184
Asst Public Works Superintendent       
Deputy Treasurer
DDA Director*       

Pay Grade 5
Building Official/Code Officer 67,517 70,893 73,020 75,210 77,465 79,790
Asst to City Manager       

      
Pay Grade 6

Deputy Clerk 55,027 57,778 59,510 61,296 63,135 65,029
Communications Supervisor
DDA Project Manager*

Starting Range



NON-UNION PAY PLAN
3.0% INCREASE EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025

Maximum Maximum Maximum Maximum
From To 1 Year 2 Years 3 Years 4 Years

      

Starting Range

      
Pay Grade 7

Administrative Assistant III 52,651 55,283 56,941 58,649 60,410 62,220
      

Pay Grade 8
Administrative Assistant II 49,289 51,753 53,305 54,903 56,550 58,250

      
Pay Grade 9

Administrative Assistant I 44,896 47,140 48,553 50,011 51,512 53,057
Administrative Specialist II

Pay Grade 10
Administrative Specialist I 40,407 42,426 43,698 45,010 46,361 47,751

Pay Grade 11
Administrative Specialist 36,365 38,184 39,328 40,508 41,725 42,976

Pay Grade - Part-Time, Permanent
Classified under the appropriate full-time classification with salary pro-rated 

Pay Grade - Part-Time, Temporary
Salary set by the appointing officer or body within budgetary appropriations

City Manager's salary is established by employment agreement

* DDA Board sets their pay



Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 

Council Meeting 
Date:  
June 16, 2025 

Item 
Number 

Submitted by: Jess Westendorf, DDA Director 

Agenda Topic:  Adoption of DDA Budget FY2025-26 

Proposed Motion:   
Move to approve resolution to adopt the DDA Fiscal Year 2025-26 Budget and establish 2025-
26 Principal Shopping District Special Assessment. 

Background: 

Please find for your review the proposed budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2025 and 
ending June 30, 2026.  

This budget was approved by the DDA Board for submittal to the City Council on April 2, 2025, 
and presented to City Council at the June 2, 2025 meeting. 

Please note the following highlights: 
• Property tax revenue is projected to increase 8%. Over the past three years, we have

realized a $159,000 TIF increase, however $37,000 is paid out to GLP and Hill Side
Townes through the Brownfield / TIF redevelopment plan

• Repairs and Maintenance budget within PSD is $164,500 (a 25% increase)
• We are in year four of approved five-year PSD cycle, total assessment of $218,698
• Decrease in revenue by $377,052, as we wrap up a slate of grant-funded capital projects

and private investment in public art. Budget expenditures align with this as we construct
the last of three consecutive public space capital projects with Art Park Promenade.

• We are drawing from fund balance by $93,000, leaving $170,000, which is our fund
balance target

Materials: 
DDA Proposed Budget 2025-26, DDA Budget and PSD Adoption Resolution, Proposed 2025-
2026 PSD Special Assessment Roll 

7E



FUND 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2025-26

Amended Projected Manager

DESCRIPTION Actual Actual Budget Budget Proposed

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REVENUES

Dept 000.00-TIF

PROPERTY TAXES, OPR, REV (5,970) 610 0 0 0

PROPERTY TAXES, TIFA 468,379 515,686 553,000 558,000 627,000

GRANTS, OTHER 70,444 204,952 1,000 20,300 7,000

GRANTS, MAINSTREET SMALL BUSINESS 0 7,500 2,500 7,500 2,500

GRANTS, MASONIC PARK 0 25,000 463,000 601,215 0

GRANTS, ART PROMENADE 0 0 129,000 0 163,000

LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION APPROP. 7,664 13,395 8,300 8,357 5,604

INVESTMENT INCOME 30,349 30,260 8,000 30,000 25,000

SALE OF CAPITAL ASSETS, GAIN(LOSS) (9,360) 0 0 0 0

REVENUES, OTHER 0 10,000 0 0 0

Total 561,506 807,403 1,164,800 1,225,372 830,104

Dept 759.00-PRINCIPAL SHOPPING DISTRICT

PROPERTY TAXES, TWO MILL LEVY 46,988 50,130 53,000 53,000 57,000

FEDERAL GRANTS 170 0 0 0 0

EVENT REVENUE 0 0 1,000 0 3,000

REVENUES, OTHER 37,178 37,855 20,000 26,555 36,000

DDA DISTRICT, SP ASSESSMENT 200,140 206,144 212,329 212,329 218,698

Total 284,476 294,129 286,329 291,884 314,698

Dept 761.00-FOUNDERS FESTIVAL

REVENUES, OTHER 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Dept 762.00-ART ON THE GRAND

VENDOR FEES 2,250 450 1,350 1,350 1,350

SPONSORSHIPS 4,500 10,000 8,500 8,500 8,500

REVENUES, OTHER 4,016 5,641 4,300 4,500 4,500

Total 10,766 16,091 14,150 14,350 14,350



FUND 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2025-26

Amended Projected Manager

DESCRIPTION Actual Actual Budget Budget Proposed

Dept 764.00-HARVEST MOON CELEBRATION

CONCESSION, HARVEST MOON 43,029 49,585 30,000 48,394 35,000

ADMISSIONS, HARVEST MOON 32,441 38,158 22,500 37,755 25,000

SPONSORSHIPS 4,200 3,750 8,100 8,600 8,500

REVENUES, OTHER 700 1,578 1,350 1,303 1,350

Total 80,370 93,071 61,950 96,052 69,850

Dept 766.00-RHYTHMZ IN RILEY PARK

SPONSORSHIPS 15,506 19,689 45,600 21,560 45,600

Total 15,506 19,689 45,600 21,560 45,600

Dept 767.00-BUILDING RENTAL

RENTAL FEES 28,250 10,950 0 0 0

REVENUES, OTHER 297 265 0 0 0

Total 28,547 11,215 0 0 0

Dept 768.00-LUNCH BEATS

SPONSORSHIPS 7,480 1,592 6,375 3,425 6,500

REVENUES, OTHER 3 0 0 0 0

Total 7,483 1,592 6,375 3,425 6,500

Dept 769.00 - GRAND RAVEN FESTIVAL

SPONSORSHIPS 12,290 12,000 11,000 11,000 11,000

REVENUES, OTHER 567 151 200 150 150

Total 12,857 12,151 11,200 11,150 11,150

Dept 770.00 - COMMUNITY FOUNDATION

GRANTS, OTHER 0 0 0 0 0

CONTRIBUTIONS HARVEST MOON 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0



FUND 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2025-26

Amended Projected Manager

DESCRIPTION Actual Actual Budget Budget Proposed

Dept 771.00 - HEART THE ART

SALES, CONCESSIONS 0 1,311 1,303 0 0

ADMISSION FEES 0 5,165 4,000 0 0

REVENUES, OTHER 0 80 0 0 0

Total 0 6,556 5,303 0 0

TOTAL DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REVENUES 1,001,511 1,261,897 1,595,707 1,663,793 1,292,252

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY EXPENDITURES

Dept 000.00-TIF

SALARIES, FULL TIME 81,787 85,616 89,240 89,240 91,917

SALARIES, DC RETIREE HEALTH CARE 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100

SALARIES, PART-TIME/TEMP 29,820 40,824 44,946 44,946 47,683

SALARIES, OVERTIME 635 1,197 0 1,064 0

SALARIES, ACCRUED BENEFITS (622) 885 1,004 1,004 1,045

LONGEVITY PAY 325 390 455 455 520

PYMT IN LIEU OF HOSP INS 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400

FICA, EMPLOYER'S SHARE 8,880 10,061 10,601 10,601 11,022

COMPREHENSIVE MEDICAL INSURANCE 1,205 1,453 1,570 1,477 1,470

LIFE INSURANCE 212 203 208 208 214

LONG TERM DISABILITY 153 138 139 139 143

WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION INS 77 72 89 89 92

CONTRIBUTION, PENSION 23,803 35,365 40,503 40,503 42,204

OFFICE SUPPLIES 769 911 1,281 1,781 1,781

POSTAGE, METER 124 126 200 200 200

NON-CAPITALIZED ASSETS 0 0 0 2,773 0

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 27,897 14,542 36,900 45,575 16,900

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 28,371 25,065 36,500 28,800 31,500

TELECOMMUNICATIONS 1,327 1,200 1,750 1,200 1,200

TRANSPORTATION 654 334 500 500 500

GRANTS, MAINSTREET SMALL BUSINESS 0 9,250 2,500 7,500 2,500

DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES 0 5,980 5,000 10,461 20,000

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE 140 231 2,000 300 2,000



FUND 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2025-26

Amended Projected Manager

DESCRIPTION Actual Actual Budget Budget Proposed

MEMBERSHIPS, SUBSCRIPTIONS 986 665 1,060 1,835 1,835

PROFESSIONAL DEV, CONFERENCES 8,847 7,926 8,850 10,850 10,850

B3-FARM-2020 GLP (S) 345 5,222 6,400 6,500 7,100

B5-FARM-2023 HILLSIDE TOWNES (S) 0 0 0 0 29,500

CAPITAL OUTLAY 102,898 351,460 0 0 0

CAPITAL OUTLAY, MASONS CORNER 0 52,695 463,000 658,995 0

CAPITAL OUTLAY, ART PROMENADE 0 0 321,000 67,000 321,000

DEBT SERVICE 207,105 208,122 210,306 210,856 207,165

Total 530,238 864,433 1,290,502 1,249,352 854,841

Dept 759.00-PRINCIPAL SHOPPING DISTRICT

SALARIES, PART-TIME/TEMP 8,821 6,748 8,140 8,860 8,860

FICA, EMPLOYER'S SHARE 675 516 514 678 678

SEASONAL DECORATIONS,GARDENING 34,284 35,012 34,000 36,300 41,800

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 50,950 47,880 55,624 61,380 57,774

COMMUNITY PROMOTION 40,397 41,239 48,400 43,650 42,500

0 2,921 4,000 6,000 6,000

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 5,030 2,847 4,000 4,000 14,000

VOLUNTEER MANAGEMENT 3,637 2,877 4,000 4,000 4,000

PUBLIC UTILITIES 17,883 29,582 30,250 34,000 37,000

REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 87,586 199,441 131,900 157,440 164,500

Total 249,263 369,063 320,828 356,308 377,112

Dept 761.00-FOUNDERS FESTIVAL

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Dept 762.00-ART ON THE GRAND

COMMUNITY PROMOTION 540 450 1,400 800 800

ENTERTAINMENT 4,250 475 5,500 4,200 4,200

EQUIPMENT RENTAL 2,942 4,649 3,500 4,200 4,200

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE 1,608 6,619 3,750 5,150 5,150

Total 9,340 12,193 14,150 14,350 14,350



FUND 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2025-26

Amended Projected Manager

DESCRIPTION Actual Actual Budget Budget Proposed

Dept 764.00-HARVEST MOON CELEBRATION

OFFICE SUPPLIES 0 47 0 0 0

CONCESSION SUPPLIES 20,809 24,493 24,900 26,890 28,900

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 5,865 5,700 8,000 7,425 7,500

COMMUNITY PROMOTION 3,409 10,776 3,600 2,756 3,650

ENTERTAINMENT 10,024 11,915 12,000 12,188 15,000

EQUIPMENT RENTAL 7,823 8,627 9,000 9,666 10,300

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE 4,536 3,000 4,450 4,554 4,500

CONTRIBUTIONS, PATRONICITY 10,000 0 0 0 0

CONTRIBUTION, COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 0 10,000 0 0 0

Total 62,466 74,558 61,950 63,479 69,850

Dept 766.00-RHYTHMZ IN RILEY PARK

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 11,817 11,622 15,200 13,070 15,200

COMMUNITY PROMOTION 2,056 2,169 10,400 2,400 10,400

ENTERTAINMENT 9,900 14,475 20,000 17,400 20,000

Total 23,773 28,266 45,600 32,870 45,600

Dept 767.00-BUILDING RENTAL

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 3,805 1,998 0 0 0

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 16,069 9,269 0 0 0

PUBLIC UTILITIES 297 1,594 0 0 0

MAINT, BUILDING & GROUNDS 6,710 1,403 0 0 0

CONTRIBUTION INS & BONDS 573 643 0 0 0

CAPITAL OUTLAY, BUILDINGS 0 0 0 0 0

Total 27,454 14,907 0 0 0

Dept 768.00-LUNCH BEATS

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 1,750 1,375 2,250 1,600 2,250

COMMUNITY PROMOTION 2,134 1,869 1,950 1,950 1,950

ENTERTAINMENT 1,460 1,480 2,175 1,830 2,300

Total 5,344 4,724 6,375 5,380 6,500



FUND 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2025-26

Amended Projected Manager

DESCRIPTION Actual Actual Budget Budget Proposed

Dept 769.00 - GRAND RAVEN FESTIVAL

COMMUNITY PROMOTION 2,171 2,942 3,550 5,560 3,650

EVENTS 3,983 6,500 4,300 2,700 2,700

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE 2,276 2,930 3,350 5,136 5,250

Total 8,430 12,372 11,200 13,396 11,600

Dept 770.00 - COMMUNITY FOUNDATION

CONTRIBUTION, COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Dept 771.00 - HEART THE ART

CONCESSION SUPPLIES 0 687 325 0 325

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 884 884 0 884

COMMUNITY PROMOTION 0 1,347 1,450 0 1,450

ENTERTAINMENT 0 400 400 0 400

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE 0 1,953 2,000 0 2,000

0 5,271 5,059 0 5,059

TOTAL DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY EXPENDITURES 916,308 1,385,787 1,755,664 1,735,135 1,384,912

Surplus/(Deficit) 85,203 (123,890) (159,957) (71,342) (92,660)

 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 372,229 457,432 333,542 333,542 262,200

 ENDING FUND BALANCE 457,432 333,542 173,585 262,200 169,540



RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION OF THE FARMINGTON CITY COUNCIL ADOPTING THE 
FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 BUDGET FOR THE FARMINGTON DOWNTOWN 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY. 

WHEREAS, the Farmington Downtown Development Authority (DDA) presented 
a proposed budget to the City Council for Fiscal Year 2025-2026 
in the amount of $1,384,912; and 

WHEREAS, the DDA also provides a work plan associated with the proposed 
budget; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted a resolution at its October 18, 2021 
meeting to renew the Principal Shopping District (PSD) special 
assessment for five year period; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Farmington City Council 
hereby 

adopts the Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Downtown Development 
Authority Budget in the amount of $1,384,912.   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Farmington City Council hereby sets 
the Principal Shopping District special assessment for Fiscal Year 
2025-2026 at $218,698 in accordance with the attached assessment roll. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that to meet the requirements for budgeted 
appropriations of the Farmington Downtown Development Authority, the City 
Treasurer is hereby directed to spread taxes on real and personal property 
located within the boundaries of the Farmington Downtown 
Development Authority District in the amount of one dollar and s i x t y -
n i n e  a n d  ninety one hundredth cents ($1.6991) per thousand dollars of 
Taxable Value, and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Treasurer is directed to 
collect incremental taxes eligible for capture under an incremental 
financing plan established by the Farmington Downtown Development 
Authority and disburse the captured tax revenues to the Authority. 

WHEREAS, the PSD renewal resolution authorized the PSD assessment to be 
set at $218,698 for Fiscal Year 2025-2026; and 



Statementof Intent:

2025

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF FARMINGTON

PRINCIPAL SHOPPING DISTRICT

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT

SAD NO.: 2021-92
Yr. 4 0f 5

This Special AssessmentDistrict and Roll have been established underthe authority of Public Act 120 of

1961 (MCL 125.981, et seq.) to collect $ 1,062,570 over a five (5) year period, beginning with the July 1, 2022

tax roll, for the purpose of funding the administrative, marketing, promotional and maintenanceactivities as

described in the Principal Shopping District (PSD) DevelopmentPlan.

The Special AssessmentDistrict includes all non-residential and non-residential portions of all non-exempt

real property located within the Downtown DevelopmentAuthority District. The total amountto be collected

in eachof the five (5) years of the plan will be spread based uponthe percentage that each individual

non-residential real property assessmentis of the total non-residential real property assessmentfor the

Special AssessmentDistrict. The prior year Downtown Development Authority AssessmentRoll, as certified

by the March Board of Review and as amended by Assessor's Corrections, decisions of the July and December

Board of Review, and orders of the Michigan Tax Tribunal and State Tax Commission, will be used in determining

the allocation of the installment payments as approved by the Farmington City Council for each yearof the five

(5) year plan.

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL COLLECTION SUMMARY

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposed Actual Total Authorized for Special Assessment:

2022 / ist Year $200,140 $200,140.00 $1,062,570 °

2023 / 2nd Year $206,144 $206,144.00

2024/ 3rd Year $212,329 $212,329.00

|2025 / 4th Year $218,698 $218,698.00| Total Proposed Current Year

2026/ 5th Year $225,259 $225,259.00 Collection (July/December, 2025):

Total: $1,062,570 $1,062,570.00 | $218,698 |
 

BASED UPON ANNUALLY APPROVED INSTALLMENTS(2022-2026)

OVERALL REDUCTION IN COLLECTIONS: N/A

25_sadroll_21-92-4_20.xIsx

05/06/2025



 

 

2025

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL

TO FUND THE
CITY OF FARMINGTON

PRINCIPAL SHOPPING DISTRICT PLAN  
 

 

  
 

Individual Special Allocation of Special

2024 Qualified Qualiied  Assessinent Assessment
Percentof TVasa%

_

based on the

Taxable Non-Res. ./axable of Total Calculated % 2025 2025
Valite Use (1) Value: (T¥} Qualified of Total Summer Winter

Parcel Number Property Address Property Owner (Prior Year) for SAD TV Qualified TV Tax Roll Tax Roll

20-23-27-151-017 23720 FARMINGTON RD HEENEY SUNDQUIST FUNERAL HOMEINC 365,100 100% 365,100 1.56% $ 3,410.97 $ 1,705.49 $ 1,705.48

20-23-27-151-021 33316 THOMASST CITY OF FARMINGTON 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-151-022 33300 THOMAS ST ALLORE HOLDINGSII LLC 365,580 100% 365,600 1.56% $ 3,415.64 $ 1,707.82 $ 1,707.82

20-23-27-152-011 33112 GRANDRIVER AVE FIRST UNITED METHODIST 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-152-018 FIRST UNITED METHDST OF FARMINGTON ) Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-152-020 ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0) Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ : $ -

20-23-27-152-021 ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES, LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-153-001 33342 GRAND RIVER AVE JANICE L. KONJAREVICH LIVING TRUST 115,580 100% 115,600 0.49% $ 1,080.00 $ 540.00 $ 540.00

20-23-27-153-002 33337 THOMASST CITY OF FARMINGTON 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-153-003 33338 GRAND RIVER AVE COWLEY INVESTMENTS, LLC 458,390 100% 458,400 1.96% $ 4,282.63 $ 2,141.32 $ 2,141.31

20-23-27-153-004 33336 GRANDRIVER AVE GRAND FARMINGTON,LLC 82,780 100% 82,800 0.35% $ 773.56 $ 386.78 $ 386.78

20-23-27-153-005 33332 GRAND RIVER AVE CITY OF FARMINGTON 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-153-007 33318 GRANDRIVER AVE LAR PROPERTIES, LLC 249,640 56% 139,800 0.60% $ 1,306.09 $ 653.05 $ 653.04

20-23-27-153-008 33316 GRANDRIVER AVE AZAR BROTHERS,LLC 341,580 100% 341,600 1.46% $ 3,191.42 $ 1,595.71 $ 1,595.71

20-23-27-153-009 33314 GRAND RIVER AVE FETZER PROPERTIES LLC 107,380 100% 107,400 0.46% $ 1,003.39 $ 501.70 $ 501.69

20-23-27-153-010 33312 GRANDRIVER AVE CHANG COMPANYLIMITEDLLC 203,040 100% 203,000 0.87% $ 1,896.54 $ 948.27 $ 948.27

20-23-27-153-011 33306 GRANDRIVER AVE LSGO LLC 119,440 100% 119,400 0.51% $ 1,115.50 $ . 557.75 $ 557.75

20-23-27-153-012 33304 GRANDRIVER AVE MMK GROUPLLC 88,310 100% 88,300 0.38% $ 824.95 $ 412.48 $ 412.47

20-23-27-153-015 33250 GRANDRIVER AVE AZAR MANAGEMENTLLC 89,300 100% 89,300 0.38% $ 834.29 $ 417.15 $ 417.14

20-23-27-153-021 33224 GRANDRIVER AVE THIBAULT ENTERPRISES INC 432,870 100% 432,900 1.85% $ 4,044.39 $ 2,022.20 $ 2,022.19

20-23-27-153-022 33311 THOMASST CITY OF FARMINGTON 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-153-023 33216 GRANDRIVER AVE AGHOBJIAN, MANOEIL & MARIE 90,000 100% 90,000 0.38% $ 840.83 $ 420.42 $ 420.41

20-23-27-153-024 33212 GRANDRIVER AVE JAM HOLDINGS,LLC 108,840 100% 108,800 0.46% $ 1,016.47 $ 508.24 $ 508.23

20-23-27-153-025 FARMINGTON DOWNTOWNDEVELOPMENT 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-153-026 33200 GRANDRIVER AVE LOS TRES AMIGOS-FARMINGTON,LLC 171,820 100% 171,800 0.73% $ 1,605.05 $ 802.53 $ 802.52

25_sadroll_21-92-4_20.xlsx

05/06/2025 Page 1 of 8

 



 

 

2025

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL

TO FUND THE
CITY OF FARMINGTON

PRINCIPAL SHOPPING DISTRICT PLAN  
 

 

  
 

poise Spatial Allocation of Special

2024 Qualified Gualiied  ASsessmiieiit Assessment
Percent of TVasa% based on the

Taxable Non-Res. Taxable of Total Calculated % 2025 2025

Wallis Use (1) Value (TV) Qualified of Total Summer Winter

Parcel Number Property Address Property Owner (Prior Year) for SAD TV Qualified TV Tax Roll Tax Roll

20-23-27-154-004 33107 THOMASST ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - §$ -

20-23-27-154-005 33103 THOMASST BUDD, DALE V 94,660 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-154-006 33023 THOMASST TDG MANAGEMENT1,LLC 89,170 76% 67,800 0.29% $ 633.43 $ 316.72 $ 316.71

20-23-27-154-007 33110 GRANDRIVER AVE JOHNSON INVESTMENTCO 154,010 100% 154,000 0.66% $ 1,438.75 $ 719.38 $ 719.37

20-23-27-154-008 33104 GRANDRIVER AVE ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 83% 0 0.00%  $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-154-009 33100 GRANDRIVER AVE GINGER BRIDGET'S, LLC 78,810 100% 78,800 0.34% $ 736.19 $ 368.10 $ 368.09

20-23-27-154-010 33018 GRANDRIVER AVE GAISER, CARL THOMPSON 98,220 100% 98,200 0.42% $ 917.44 $ 458.72 $ 458.72

20-23-27-154-011 33014 GRANDRIVER AVE C-4 LEASING LLC 174,360 100% 174,400 0.75% $ 1,629.34 $ 814.67 $ 814.67

20-23-27-154-012 33004 GRANDRIVER AVE HEPPARD COMMERCIALLLC 273,270 100% 273,300 1.17% $ 2,553.32 $ 1,276.66 $ 1,276.66

20-23-27-154-014 33106 GRANDRIVER AVE STATE OF MICHIGAN 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-154-015 33112 GRANDRIVER AVE FIRST UNITED METHODIST 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - §$ -

20-23-27-155-001 33335 GRAND RIVER AVE DAMKCATREALESTATE HOLDINGS, LLC 345,510 100% 345,500 1.48% $ 3,227.85 $ 1,613.93 $ 1,613.92

20-23-27-155-002 33329 GRANDRIVER AVE DAMKCAT REALESTATE HOLDINGS,LLC 364,960 61% 222,600 0.95% $ 2,079.65 $ 1,039.83 $ 1,039.82

20-23-27-155-003 33317 GRANDRIVER AVE DAMKCATREALESTATE, LLC 115,010 100% 115,000 0.49% $ 1,074.39 $ 537.20 $ 537.19

20-23-27-155-004 33335 GRANDRIVER AVE DAMKCATREALESTATE HOLDINGS,LLC 62,890 100% 62,900 0.27% $ 587.65 $ 293.83 $ 293.82

20-23-27-155-008 33245 GRANDRIVER AVE HINDS, MICHELE H 94,050 100% 94,100 0.40% $ 879.13 $ 439.57 $ 439.56

20-23-27-155-011 33205 GRANDRIVER AVE CHEMICAL BANK 375,020 100%, 375,000 160% $ 3,503.46 $ 1,751.73 $ 1,751.73

20-23-27-155-020 23382 FARMINGTON RD T & INVESTMENT LLC 1,550 100% 1,600 0.01% $ 14.95 $ 7.48 $ 7.47

20-23-27-155-024 23366 FARMINGTON RD RHINOJOELLC 270,140 100% 270,100 1.15% $ 2,523.42 $ 1,261.71 $ 1,261.71

20-23-27-155-025 23360 FARMINGTON RD T & | INVESTMENT LLC 160,650 100% 160,700 0.69% $ 1,501.35 $ 750.68 $ 750.67

20-23-27-155-026 23340 FARMINGTON RD FARMINGTON CENTER MICHIGAN,LLC 432,910 100% 432,900 1.85% $ 4,044.39 $ 2,022.20 $ 2,022.19

20-23-27-155-040 33171 GRANDRIVER AVE FARMINGTON CENTER MICHIGAN,LLC 485,630 100% 485,600 2.07% $ 4,536.74 $ 2,268.37 $ 2,268.37

20-23-27-155-044 23534 FARMINGTON RD 23534 FARMINGTONRDLLC 194,770 100% 194,800 0.83% $ 1,819.93 $ 909.97 $ 909.96

20-23-27-155-045 33305 GRANDRIVER AVE DAMKCATREAL ESTATE HOLDINGS, LLC 293,590 100% 293,600 1.25% $ 2,742.97 $ 1,371.49 $ 1,371.48

20-23-27-155-046 33211 GRANDRIVER AVE DOWNTOWNOFFICES 407,850 100% 407,900 1.74% $ 3,810.83 $ 1,905.42 $ 1,905.41

25_sadroll_21-92-4_20.xlsx

05/06/2025 Page 2 of 8

 



 

 

2025

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL

TO FUND THE

CITY OF FARMINGTON

PRINCIPAL SHOPPING DISTRICT PLAN  
 

 

  
 

Individual Special Allocation of Special

Qualified Gualied Assessiient Assessment
Percent of TVasa% based on the

Taxable Non-Res. /@xable Gt Total Calculated % 2025 2025
Value Use(1) Value (TV) Qualified of Total Summer Winter

Parcel Number Property Address Property Owner (Prior Year) for SAD TV Qualified TV Tax Roll Tax Roll

20-23-27-155-047 33111 GRAND RIVER AVE CITY OF FARMINGTON 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-155-048 23292 FARMINGTON RD FARMINGTONCENTER MICHIGAN, LLC 456,940 100% 456,900 1.95% $ 4,268.61 $ 2,134.31 $ 2,134.30

20-23-27-155-049 23300 FARMINGTON RD FARMINGTONCENTER MICHIGAN, LLC 3,389,590 100% 3,389,600 14.48%  $ 31,667.53 $ 15,833.77 $ 15,833.76

20-23-27-156-003 32905 GRANDRIVER AVE XIE ZHENG,LLC 195,770 100% 195,800 0.84% $ 1,829.27  $ 914.64 $ 914.63

20-23-27-156-004 32821 GRAND RIVER AVE XIE ZHENG, LLC 547,100 50% 273,600 117% $ 2,556.12 $ 1,278.06 $ 1,278.06

20-23-27-156-005 33001 GRANDRIVER AVE LEITRIM-GROVES,LLC 2,321,690 100% 2,321,700 9.92% $ 21,690.61 $ 10,845.31 $ 10,845.30

20-23-27-157-001 33008 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-157-002 33010 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - §$ -

20-23-27-157-003 33012 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSON HILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - §$ -

20-23-27-157-004 33014 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-157-005 33016 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% §$ - $ - § -

20-23-27-157-006 33018 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES, LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-157-007 33020 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 000% §$ - $ - § -

20-23-27-157-008 33022 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-157-009 33024 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - §$ -

20-23-27-157-010 33080 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSON HILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-157-011 33090 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSON HILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - .$ 2

20-23-27-157-012 33100 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-157-013 33102 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSON HILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - §$ -

20-23-27-157-014 33104 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-157-015 33106 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSON HILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - §¢ -

20-23-27-157-016 33108 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSON HILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-157-017 33110 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-157-018 33112 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSON HILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-157-019 33114 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSON HILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - § -

25_sadroll_21-92-420.xlsx

05/06/2025 Page 3 of 8

 



 

 

2025

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL

TO FUND THE

CITY OF FARMINGTON

PRINCIPAL SHOPPING DISTRICT PLAN  
 

Parcel Number Property Address Property Owner

2024

Taxable

Value

(Prior Year)

Percentof

Non-Res.

Use(1)

Qualified

Taxable

Value (TV)

for SAD

Individual

Qualified

TVasa%

of Total

Qualified

TV

Special
Assessment

based on the

Calculated %

of Total

Qualified TV

Allocation of Special

 

 

Assessment

2025 2025

Summer Winter

Tax Roll Tax Roll 
 

20-23-27-157-020

20-23-27-157-021

20-23-27-157-022

20-23-27-157-023

20-23-27-157-024

20-23-27-157-025

20-23-27-157-026

20-23-27-157-027

20-23-27-157-028

20-23-27-157-029

20-23-27-157-030

20-23-27-157-031

20-23-27-157-032

20-23-27-157-033

20-23-27-157-034

20-23-27-157-035

. 20-23-27-157-036

20-23-27-157-037

20-23-27-157-038

20-23-27-157-039

20-23-27-157-040

20-23-27-157-041

20-23-27-157-042

20-23-27-157-043

20-23-27-157-044

23602 PARKVIEW LN

23604 PARKVIEW LN

23606 PARKVIEW LN

23608 PARKVIEW LN

23610 PARKVIEW LN

23612 PARKVIEW LN

23614 PARKVIEW LN

23616 PARKVIEW LN

23618 PARKVIEW LN

23617 TRAILVIEW LN

23615 TRAILVIEW LN

23613 TRAILVIEW LN

23611 TRAILVIEW LN

23609 TRAILVIEW LN

23607 TRAILVIEW LN

23605 TRAILVIEW LN

23603 TRAILVIEW LN

23601 TRAILVIEW LN

33023 TOWNHILL RD

33021 TOWNHILL RD

33019 TOWNHILL RD

33017 TOWNHILL RD

33015 TOWNHILL RD

33013 TOWNHILL RD

33011 TOWNHILL RD

25_sadroll_21-92-4_20.xlsx

05/06/2025

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES, LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES, LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES, LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES, LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES, LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES, LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES, LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES, LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES, LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES, LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES, LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC

ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES, LLC e
o
o
o
a
c
o
a
o
a
o
a
o
a
o
a
o
a
a
a
a
o
a
o
a
a
o
a
o
a
a
a
o
a
a
o
a
o
a
o
a
a
e

e
o Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Exempt

Page 4 of 8

c
o
c
o
o
o
c
a
o
a
o
a
o
a
o
a
o
a
o
a
o
a
a
a
a
o
a
o
a
a
o
a
o
a
o
a
a
a
o
e
a
o
a
a
o
a
a

e
o
2 0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00% P
P
A

P
H
F
M
H
A
R
n
H
F
r
H
F
H
H
F
H
F
H
H
H
F
H
H
F
H
H
F
r
n
n
n
e
r
n
T
r
n
F
n
n
F
r
T
n
n
A
n

f
F

'

P
r

F
r
F
H
F
H
F
H
F
F
A
F
e
F
H
F
e
F
H
F
H
F
n
e
F
e
F
H
F
H
F
e
F
e
F
H
F
H
F
n
H
F
n

H
f

P
e
r
e
r
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
r
n
n
T
n
e
n
e
r
e
r
n
n
r
w
n
n

 



 

 

 

 

 

2025

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL

TO FUND THE

CITY OF FARMINGTON

PRINCIPAL SHOPPING DISTRICT PLAN   
 

  
 

Individual Special Allocation of Special
age Qualified Assessment

2024 Qualified Assessment
Percent of TVasa%_ based on the

Taxable on-Res, [ax4ble ot Total Calculated % 2025 2025
Value Use (1) Value (TV) Qualified of Total Summer Winter

Parcel Number Property Address Property Owner (Prior Year) for SAD TV Qualified TV Tax Roll Tax Roll

20-23-27-157-045 33009 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-157-046 33008 ROUGESIDE TRL ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ 3 $ -

20-23-27-157-047 33010 ROUGESIDETRL ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ $ - $

20-23-27-157-048 33012 ROUGESIDE TRL ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-157-049 33014 ROUGESIDE TRL ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-157-050 33016 ROUGESIDE TRL ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ = $ :

20-23-27-157-051 33018 ROUGESIDE TRL ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-157-052 33020 ROUGESIDE TRL ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-157-053 33022 ROUGESIDE TRL ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES,LLC 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-177-005 32830 GRAND RIVER AVE CITY OF FARMINGTON 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-177-010 32716 GRAND RIVER AVE BUYERS, PAULA 68,720 100% 68,700 0.29% $ 641.83 $ 320.92 $ 320.91

20-23-27-177-094 32720 GRANDRIVER AVE FARMINGTON VILLAGE COMPLEX 1,599,160 100% 1,599,200 6.83% $ 14,940.61 $ 7,470.31 $ 7,470.30

20-23-27-301-001 23290 FARMINGTON RD JP HERZOG LLC 78,940 100% 78,900 0.34% $ 737.13 $ 368.57 $ 368.56

20-23-27-301-003 23220 FARMINGTON RD CASA MARIN,LLC 332,040 100% 332,000 1.42% $ 3,101.73 $ 1,550.87 $ 1,550.86

20-23-27-301-004 33317 ORCHARD ST DELEO, CATHY 106,680 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ “ $ 7

20-23-27-301-005 33313 ORCHARD ST FARMINGTON CENTER MICHIGAN, LLC 22,110 100% 22,100 0.09% $ 206.47 $ 103.24 $ 103.23

20-23:27-301-006 33309 ORCHARD ST CITYOF FARMINGTON, 0 Exempt . 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ .7

20-23-27-301-007 33305 ORCHARD ST FARMINGTON CENTER MICHIGAN, LLC 22,110 100% 22,100 0.09% $ 206.47 $ 103.24 $ 103.23

20-23-27-301-008 33213 ORCHARD ST FARMINGTON DWNTWNDEV AUTHORITY 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-301-017 32809 GRAND RIVER AVE ROSSER, VALNEDRA 82,980 100% 83,000 0.35% $ 775.43 $ 387.72 $ 387.71

20-23-27-301-019 32729 GRANDRIVER AVE MECOLLI, EVIS 130,910 100% 130,900 0.56% $ 1,222.94 $ 611.47 $ 611.47

20-23-27-301-020 32725 GRAND RIVER AVE SMART, ROBERT R 103,120 100% 103,100 0.44% $ 963.22 $ 481.61 $ 481.61

20-23-27-301-021 32721 GRANDRIVER AVE BUYERS, RUSSELL A 103,560 100% 103,600 0.44% $ 967.89 $ 483.95 $ 483.94

20-23-27-301-022 32715 GRAND RIVER AVE CAPGROW HOLDINGSJV 736,280 100% 736,300 3.15% $ 6,878.92 $ 3,439.46 $ 3,439.46

20-23-27-301-045 33201 ORCHARD ST CITY OF FARMINGTON 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

25_sadroll_21-92-4_20.xlsx

05/06/2025 Page 5 of 8

 



 

2025

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL

TO FUND THE
CITY OF FARMINGTON

PRINCIPAL SHOPPING DISTRICT PLAN  
 

 

  
 

Individual Special Allocation of Special

2024 Qualified Gualiied AssESsnient Assessment
Percent of TVasa%

_

based on the

Taxahls Non-Res. Takabis of Total Calculated % 2025 2025

Value Use (1) Value (Tv) Qualified of Total Summer Winter

ParcelNumber Property Address Property Owner (Prior Year) for SAD TV Qualified TV Tax Roll Tax Roll

20-23-27-301-047 33200 SLOCUM DR SUNNY DAY CARE INC 345,980 100% 346,000 1.48% $ 3,232.52 $ 1,616.26 $ 1,616.26

20-23-27-301-048 23280 FARMINGTON RD LOWENREALESTATELLC 162,600 100% 162,600 0.69% $ 1,519.10 $ 759.55 $ 759.55

20-23-27-301-050 33240 SLOCUM DR VANDENBERG,KEVINJ 67,550 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-301-051 33242 SLOCUM DR BOYCE, ADAM FRANCIS 151,500 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ = $ 2

20-23-27-301-052 33246 SLOCUM DR BENNETT, DAVID W 98,970 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-301-053 33244 SLOCUM DR MATHIES, CARTYEA 162,880 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-301-054 33248 SLOCUM DR MCCLELLAN, ERICA V 67,130 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-301-055 33250 SLOCUM DR JACQUELINE M. MACIOCE REV LVNG TRST 95,220 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-301-056 33254 SLOCUM DR HOFFMAN, BARBARA 94,120 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-301-057 33252 SLOCUM DR KALP, KEVIN J 86,410 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-301-058 33256 SLOCUM DR SHAMEY, TERA 66,650 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-301-059 33258 SLOCUM DR EQUITY TRUST COMPANY CUSTODIAN 136,340 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-301-060 33262 SLOCUM DR NIXON, COURTNEY A 85,740 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-301-061 33260 SLOCUM DR STARK,CAITLIN 108,780 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-301-062 33264 SLOCUM DR MCARTHUR, SANDRA E 73,140 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-301-063 33266 SLOCUM DR SEKRESKI, BLAGOJA 97,510 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-301-064 33270 SLOCUM DR VARVERAKIS, JOHN M . 66,650 0% 0, 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-301-065 33268 SLOCUM DR PETRACH, RACHEL L 150,550 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-301-082 FARMINGTON DEVELOPMENT GROUP LLC 0 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-301-083 33210 SLOCUM DR ORCHARDS FARMINGTON,LLC 994,370 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-306-001 33107 ORCHARD ST BROYLES, ADAM T 62,860 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-306-002 33109 ORCHARD ST MARMUS, MATHIEU 59,290 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-306-003 33111 ORCHARD ST MJB1040 LLC 75,200 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-306-004 33105 ORCHARD ST 33105 ORCHARD STREET, LLC 40,150 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

20-23-27-306-005 33103 ORCHARD ST TOSIC, DRAGAN 59,290 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - $ -

25_sadroll_21-92-4_20.xlsx

05/06/2025 Page 6 of 8

 



 

 

2025

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL

TO FUND THE
CITY OF FARMINGTON

PRINCIPAL SHOPPINGDISTRICT PLAN  
 

 

  
 

Individual Special Allocation of Special
Pa Qualified Assessment

2024 Qualified Assessment
Percent of TVasa% based on the

Taxable Non-Res.  %9PI@ of Total Calculated % 2025 2025
Valle Use (1) Value (TV) Qualified of Total Summer Winter

Parcel Number Property Address Property Owner (Prior Year) for SAD TV Qualified TV Tax Roll Tax Roll

20-23-27-306-006 33101 ORCHARD ST ROITMAN, SARA 40,660 0% 0 0.00%  $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-306-007 33119 ORCHARD ST TASH, LORRAINE M 60,590 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-306-008 33121 ORCHARD ST KINNEY, SUSAN MICHELLE 69,920 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-306-009 33123 ORCHARD ST LINDERER, CHRISTA 40,660 0% 0 000%  $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-306-010 33117 ORCHARD ST HAMMOUD, NERMEAN 73,990 0% 0 0.00%  $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-306-011 33115 ORCHARD ST TOSIC, BEHIA & SRDAN 69,860 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-306-012 33113 ORCHARD ST SUHRE, JEFFREY 52,200 0% 0 0.00% ¢$ - $ - § -

20-23-27-306-013 33131 ORCHARD ST GANDHI, KAUSHIKKUMARS 40,150 0% 0 0.00%  $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-306-014 33133 ORCHARD ST URBAN, MATTHEW S 57,500 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - §$ -

20-23-27-306-015 33135 ORCHARD ST TODDR. HUBBARD & LUJIN ZHANG 63,990 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-306-016 33129 ORCHARD ST WICKMAN,DAVID F 40,150 0% 0 0.00% $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-306-017 33127 ORCHARDST CAMERON, MARY KAY 59,050 0% 0 000% $ - $ - §$ -

20-23-27-306-018 33125 ORCHARD ST DEWULF, ERIC 64,120 0% 0 0.00%  $ - $ - § -

20-23-27-326-016 32704 GRANDRIVER AVE ALL ONE HOLDINGS,LLC 306,220 100% 306,200 1.31% $ 2,860.69 $ 1,430.35 $ 1,430.34

20-23-28-230-006 33608 GRAND RIVER AVE $3 INVESTMENTS,LLC 149,680 100% 149,700 0.64% $ 1,398.58 $ 699.29 $ 699.29

20-23-28-231-011 33604 GRANDRIVER AVE 33604 GRAND RIVER,LLC 283,430 100% 283,400 1.21% $ 2,647.68 $ 1,323.84 $ 1,323.84

20-23-28-276-005 33603 GRANDRIVER AVE TUROWSKI FARMINGTON DEVELOPMENT, LLC 441,390 100% 441,400 189% $ 4,123.80 $ 2,061.90 $ 2,061.90

20-23-28-276-011 23629 LIBERTY ST TDP HOLDINGS,LLC 189,810 100% 189,800 0.81% $ 1,773.22 $ 886.61 $ 886.61

20-23-28-276-014 23611 LIBERTY ST THE CHURCH IN FARMINGTON 0 Exempt 0 0.00% §$ - $ - § -

20-23-28-276-021 23617 LIBERTY ST CHIROPRACTIC FEDERAL 224,460 100% 224,500 0.96% $ 2,097.40 $ 1,048.70 $ 1,048.70

20-23-28-277-001 33430 GRANDRIVER AVE CITY OF FARMINGTON 0 Exempt 0 0.00%  $ - $ - §$ -

20-23-28-277-002 23715 FARMINGTON RD FARMINGTON MASONIC 132,450 100% 132,500 057% $ 1,237.89 $ 618.95 $ 618.94

20-23-28-278-002 33431 GRANDRIVER AVE 33431 GRANDRIVER, LLC 428,310 100% 428,300 1.83%  $ 4,001.42 $ 2,000.71 $ 2,000.71

20-23-28-278-004 33425 GRAND RIVER AVE BELLA NORA HOLDINGS,LLC 198,590 100% 198,600 0.85% $ 1,855.43 $ 927.72 $ 927.71

20-23-28-278-005 33409 GRANDRIVER AVE BELLA NORA HOLDINGS,LLC 264,920 100% 264,900 1.13% $ 2,474.84 $ 1,237.42 $ 1,237.42

25_sadroll_21-92-4_20.xIsx
05/06/2025 Page 7 of 8

 



 

 

2025

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL

TO FUND THE

CITY OF FARMINGTON

PRINCIPAL SHOPPING DISTRICT PLAN  
 

 

   
 

  

 

ineliae Spanial Allocation of Special
igi Qualified Assessment

2024 Qualified Assessment
Percent of TVasa%

_

based on the

Taxable Non-Res. 2%able oF Total Calculated % 2025 2025
Value Use(1) Value (TV) Qualified of Total Summer Winter

Parcel Number Property Address Property Owner (Prior Year) for SAD TV Qualified TV Tax Roll Tax Roll

20-23-28-278-006 33401 GRANDRIVER AVE TYJORMAG,L.L.C. 348,260 62% 215,900 0.92% $ 2,017.06 $ 1,008.53 $ 1,008.53

20-23-28-278-012 23629 FARMINGTON RD MIHAJLOVSKI, DRAGO 114,550 100% 114,600 0.49% $ 1,070.66 $ 535.33 $ 535.33

20-23-28-278-013 23623 FARMINGTON RD JEERA PROPERTIES, LLC 173,610 100% 173,600 0.74% $ 1,621.87 $ 810.94 $ 810.93

20-23-28-278-014 23621 FARMINGTON RD JORGENCA,LLC 220,800 100% 220,800 0.94% $ 2,062.84 $ 1,031.42 $ 1,031.42

20-23-28-278-015 23607 FARMINGTON RD SACKLLAH, FRED 96,100 100% 96,100 041% $ 897.82 $ 448.91 $ 448.91

20-23-28-278-016 23603 FARMINGTON RD CAST HOLDINGS, LLC 153,410 100% 153,400 0.66% $ 1,433.15 $ 716.58 $ 716.57

20-23-28-278-018 23550 LIBERTY ST THE FARMINGTON COMMUNITY 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - § -

20-23-28-278-019 23600 LIBERTY ST CITY OF FARMINGTON 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - §$ -

20-23-28-278-020 33440 STATE ST CITY OF FARMINGTON 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - §$ -

20-23-28-280-003 33509 STATE ST CITY OF FARMINGTON 0 Exempt 0 0.00% $ - $ - §$ -

20-23-28-280-004 33505 STATEST STE 101 33505 STATE LLC 229,740 100% 229,700 0.98% $ 2,145.99 $ 1,073.00 $ 1,072.99

20-23-28-280-012 23391 FARMINGTON RD CVS PHARMACYINC #8048-02 629,930 100% 629,900 2.69% $ 5,884.88 $ 2,942.44 $ 2,942.44

20-23-28-280-013 23333 FARMINGTON RD INITECH DEV OF FARMINGTON,LLC 237,980 100% 238,000 1.02% $ 2,223.53 $ 1,111.77 $ 1,111.76

20-23-28-280-014 23309 FARMINGTON RD JPMORGANCHASE& CO (FARMINGTONMI) 601,820 100% 601,800 2.57% $ 5,622.35 $ 2,811.18 $ 2,811.17

20-23-28-428-012 23285 FARMINGTON RD J.M.W. ENTERPRISES,L.L.C. 100,950 100% 101,000 043% $ 943.60 $ 471.80 $ 471.80

27,922,510] | 23,408,800] 100% | 218,698.00 | | 109,349.22 | 109,348.78|
 

NOTES:(1) "Percent of Non-Residential Use" for DDA properties which have a residential component was determinedbydividing the TCV ofthe section/area of the subject building used for residential purposes by the TCV of the

total property. The residential percentage was then subtracted from 100% to yield the non-residential shownin this Special AssessmentRoll.

25_sadroll_21-92-4_20.xlsx

05/06/2025 Page 8 of 8



25_sadroll_21-92-4_20.xlsx

05/06/2025

|, Micheal R. Lohmeier, Oakland County Equalization Officer/Assessorfor the City of Farmington, herebycertify that this Special :

AssessmentRoll No 2021-92, representing the fourth of five (5) installments, is to fund Administrative, Marketing, Promotional

and Maintenance Activities as described in the Principal Shopping District (PSD) DevelopmentPlan. Further, that this Special

Assessment Roll was prepared the result of the City Council of the City of Farmington having approved same with Resolution No.

07-21-021 on 07/19/2021. | also certify that each assessment was based upon benefit and that benefits equal that portion

of the total cost assessed against the parcels in such Special AssessmentDistrict.

  

Dated this 6th day of May, 2025
 

Micheal R. Lohmeier, Oakland County Equalization Officer &

AssessorCity of Farmington



 

PSD Split/Combination Activity - 2011 for 2012

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    
   
 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     
 

 

FROM:

20-23-27-301-066 33204 SLOCUM DR FARMINGTON DEV GROUP, LLC 4,770

20-23-27-301-067 33206 SLOCUM DR FARMINGTON DEV GROUP, LLC 4,770

20-23-27-301-068 33210 SLOCUM DR FARMINGTON DEV GROUP, LL C 4,770

20-23-27-301-069 33208 SLOCUM DR FARMINGTON DEV GROUP, LLC 4,770

20-23-27-301-070 33212 SLOCUM DR FARMINGTON DEV GROUP, LL C 4,770

20-23-27-301-071 33214 SLOCUM DR FARMINGTON DEV GROUP, LLC 4,770

20-23-27-301-072 33218 SLOCUM DR FARMINGTON DEV GROUP, LLC 4,770

20-23-27-301-073 33216 SLOCUM DR FARMINGTON DEV GROUP, LLC 4,770

20-23-27-301-074 33220 SLOCUM DR FARMINGTON DEV GROUP, LLC 4,770

20-23-27-301-075 33222 SLOCUM DR FARMINGTON DEV GROUP, LL C 4,770

20-23-27-301-076 33226 SLOCUM DR FARMINGTON DEV GROUP,LL C 4,770

20-23-27-301-077 33224 SLOCUM DR FARMINGTON DEV GROUP, LLC 4,770

20-23-27-301-078 33228 SLOCUM DR FARMINGTON DEV GROUP, LLC 4,770

20-23-27-301-079 33230 SLOCUM DR FARMINGTON DEV GROUP, LL C 4,770

20-23-27-301-080 33234 SLOCUM DR FARMINGTON DEV GROUP,LL C 4,770

20-23-27-301-081 33232 SLOCUM DR FARMINGTON DEV GROUP, LLC 4,770

(16) Total: 76,320

TO:

20-23-27-301-082 = FARMINGTON DEV GROUP, LLC 0

20-23-27-301-083 33210 SLOCUM DR FARMINGTON DEV GROUP, LLC 76,320

(2) Total: 76,320

PSD Split/Combination Activity - 2012 for 2013

N/A

| PSD Split/CombinationActivity - 2013 for 2014 |

FROM:
[203-23-27-153-020 [33200 GRAND RIVERAVE_|FARMINGTON DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT 143,950

(1) . Total: 143,950

TO:

20-23-27-153-025 = FARMINGTON DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT 29,850

20-23-27-153-026 33200 GRAND RIVER AVE. [FARMINGTON DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT 114,100

(2) Total: 143,950

DELETE (08/13 CVT Advised NOTin PSD)- 2013 for 2014

20-23-27-301-083 | [FARMINGTON DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT| -  
 

(1)

PSD

PSD

PSD S

PSDS

PSD

PSD S

it/Combination

nation

it/Combination

bination

- 2014 for 2015

N/A

- 2015 for 2016

N/A

- 2016 for 2017

N/A

- 2017 for 2018

N/A

- 2018 for 2019

N/A

- 2019 for 2020

N/A

 

 

PSD Split/Combination Activity - 2020 for 2021

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   
 

FROM:

20-23-27-152-016 33000 THOMAS ST CITY OF FARMINGTON 0

20-23-27-177-092 33000 THOMAS ST CITY OF FARMINGTON 0

(2) Total: 0

TO:

20-23-27-152-017 - CITY OF FARMINGTON 0

20-23-27-152-018 - FIRST UNITED METHODIST OF FARMINGTON 0

20-23-27-152-019 - CITY OF FARMINGTON 0

20-23-27-177-095 - CITY OF FARMINGTON 0

(4) Total: 0  
 

PSD Split/Combination Activity - 2021 for 2022
 

N/A
 

 

PSD Split/Combination Activity - 2022 for 2023
 

N/A
 

 

PSD Split/Combination Activity - 2023 for 2024
  N/A  
 

 

FROM:

PSD Split/Combination Activity - 2024 for 2025

25_sadroll_21-92-4_20.xlsx

05/06/2025



 

20-23-27-152-017 ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-152-019 ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-177-095 ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

TO:

(3) Total: O
;
O
}
;
O
}
O

 

 

20-23-27-152-020 ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-152-021 ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-001 33008 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-002 33010 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-003 33012 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-004 33014 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-005 33016 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-006 33018 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-007 33020 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-008 33022 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-009 33024 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-010 33080 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-011 33090 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-012 33100 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-013 33102 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-014 33104 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-015 33106 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-016 33108 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-017 33110 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-018 33112 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-019 33114 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-020 23602 PARKVIEW LN ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-021 23604 PARKVIEW LN ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-022 23606 PARKVIEW LN ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-023 23608 PARKVIEW LN ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-024 23610 PARKVIEW LN ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-025 23612 PARKVIEW LN ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-026 23614 PARKVIEW LN ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-027 23616 PARKVIEW LN ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-028 23618 PARKVIEW LN ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-029 23617 TRAILVIEW LN ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-030 23615 TRAILVIEW LN ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-031 23613 TRAILVIEW LN ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-032 23611 TRAILVIEW LN ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-033 23609 TRAILVIEW LN ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-034 23607 TRAILVIEW LN ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-035 23605 TRAILVIEW LN ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-036 23603 TRAILVIEW LN ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-037 23601 TRAILVIEW LN ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-038 33023 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-039 33021 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-040 33019 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-041 33017 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-042 33015 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-043 33013 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-044 33011 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-045 33009 TOWNHILL RD ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-046 33008 ROUGESIDE TRL ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-047 33010 ROUGESIDE TRL ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-048 33012 ROUGESIDE TRL ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-049 33014 ROUGESIDE TRL ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-050 33016 ROUGESIDE TRL ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-051 33018 ROUGESIDE TRL ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

20-23-27-157-052 33020 ROUGESIDE TRL ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
  20-23-27-157-053  33022 ROUGESIDE TRL  ROBERTSONHILLSIDE TOWNES LLC
 

(55)

25_sadroll_21-92-4_20.xlsx

05/06/2025

Total: C
L
O
L
O
J
O
l
L
O
J
O
J
L
O
J
O
J
O
S
O
s
O
J
L
O
L
O
J
O
L
O
J
O
L
O
J
[
O
J
O
J
O
L
O
J
S
O
J
O
J
S
O
]
[
O
J
O
J
L
O
[
O
J
O
J
O
[
O
J
l
O
[
O
J
O
J
O
J
O
J
L
O
J
[
O
J
L
O
[
O
J
[
O
J
O
J
S
O
J
L
O
J
O
L
O
L
O
J
L
O
I
[
O
]
J
O
J
O
l
[
O
]
L
O
J
O
J
o
O
}
o
O

  



 
 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: June 16, 2025 

Reference 
Number 

 
7F 

Submitted by:  David Murphy, City Manager 
 
Description   Consideration to Adopt Fiscal Year 2025-26 47th District Court, Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority, Corridor Improvement Authority and Joint Agency Budgets 
 
Requested Action   Move to adopt Fiscal Year 2025-26 Budget Resolution for the 47th District 
Court, Brownfield Redevelopment Authority, Corridor Improvement Authority and Joint Agency 
Budgets. 
 
Background   City Administration is recommending that the City Council adopt separate 
budgets for the 47th District Court, the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority, the Corridor 
Improvement Authority, and the Joint Agency Budgets. The Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority and Corridor Improvement Authority are separate agencies of the City.  While the City 
Council is responsible for adopting the budgets for these agencies, they are not involved with its 
day-to-day management and oversight.   
 
City Administration is recommending that the Council adopt the Fiscal Year 2025-26 Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority Budget at $73,992.   
 
City Administration is recommending that the Council adopt the Fiscal Year 2025-26 Corridor 
Improvement Authority at $15,100.   
 
City Administration is recommending a separate budget approval for the 47th District Court that 
incorporates the total budget and contributions from the City of Farmington and Farmington 
Hills. The City of Farmington is involved with handling the general accounting, payroll, and 
administering the budget for the 47th District Court. The Court’s budget is reviewed and 
recommended for approval by both Farmington and Farmington Hills City Councils.  It is 
necessary to formalize this approval by a separate budget adoption procedure.  The Fiscal Year 
2025-26 Budget for the 47th District Court would be $4,369,781. The City of Farmington’s 
contribution for Fiscal Year 2025-26 would be approximately $16,105 more than the current 
fiscal year. 
 
Finally, City Administration is recommending that the joint agency budgets with Farmington Hills 
also be incorporated into a separate budget approval. This would include budgets for the 
Children, Youth and Families; Farmington Area Arts Commission; Farmington Youth Assistance; 
Mayor’s Youth Council; Commission on Aging; Citizens Corp for Emergency Preparedness; and 
Multicultural/Multiracial Council.  The total for these agency budgets would be $7,490.   
 
MATERIALS: 
Budget Adoption Resolution 2025-2026 

 



RESOLUTION 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE FARMINGTON CITY COUNCIL ADOPTING THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2025-26 BUDGETS FOR THE 47th DISTRICT COURT, BROWNFIELD 
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY, AND 
JOINT AGENCY BUDGETS. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Farmington provides funding to agencies shared with the City 

of Farmington Hills; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Manager presented a Farmington Brownfield Redevelopment 

Authority Fiscal Year 2025-26 Budget for the Brownfield Redevelopment 
Fund in the amount of $73,992; and 

 
WHEREAS, City Administration recommends a Fiscal Year 2025-26 appropriation of 

$15,100 for the Grand River Corridor Improvement Authority; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Farmington shares district control unit responsibility for the 47th 

District Court and as a district control unit is responsible for approving the 
Court’s annual budget and appropriating Farmington’s share of funding 
required to fund the Court budget, and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Councils for the City of Farmington and Farmington Hills reviewed 

and agreed on the requested budget from the 47th District Court; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Farmington City Council hereby adopts 

the Fiscal Year 2025-26 budgets and approves Farmington’s share of 
funding for the following City authorities and joint agencies:  

 
 

1. Joint Agencies  
  

Children, Youth and Families    $    600 
Farmington Area Arts Commission   $    750 
Farmington Youth Assistance    $ 5,000 

  Mayor’s Youth Council     $    500 
  Commission on Aging     $    165 
  Citizens Corp for Emergency Preparedness            $    300 
  Commission on Community Health   $    175 
 
 
2. Farmington Brownfield Redevelopment Authority       $73,992   
 
3. Grand River Corridor Improvement Authority       $15,100 
 



Resolution - Fiscal Year 2025-26 Joint Agency Budgets 
Page 2 
 
  
4. 47th District Court 
  
 Total Appropriation          $4,369,781 
 
 City of Farmington Hills Contribution       $3,537,966 
 City of Farmington Contribution                  533,810 
 Other Revenues               224,167 

Appropriation (To) From Fund Balance              73,838          
             $4,369,781  
            
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Treasurer is directed to collect incremental 
taxes eligible for capture under an incremental financing plan established by the 
Farmington Brownfield Redevelopment Authority and disburse the captured tax 
revenues to the Authority.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Treasurer is directed to collect incremental 
taxes eligible for capture under an incremental financing plan established by the 
Corridor Improvement Authority and disburse the captured tax revenues to the 
Authority.   
 



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: June 16, 2025 

Item 
Number 

7G 

Submitted by: City Manager, David Murphy 
Agenda Topic: Consideration to Amend the Grand River Corridor Improvement Authority 2024-
25 Budget 
Proposed Motion:   
Move to amend the Grand River Corridor Improvement Authority 2024-25 Fiscal Year Budget 

Background:   
 
Attached is a proposed budget amendment for the Grand River Corridor Improvement Authority 
for the 24-25 fiscal year.  Significant changes include: 
 
Reducing contractual service to remove property acquisition ($40,000), corridor entry signage 
($50,000) and property analysis ($20,000) and increase professional services to include funding 
for a portion of the master plan ($24,000) and miscellaneous studies ($5,000).  A portion of the 
master plan costs is offset by grant revenue ($15,000). 
 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Materials:  
Resolution - CIA Budget Amendment 1, FY 2024-25 
CIA Proposed Budget 25-26 



RESOLUTION 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE FARMINGTON CITY COUNCIL AMENDING THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2024-25 BUDGET FOR THE CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY 
 
WHEREAS, City Council adopted a Fiscal Year 2024-25 appropriation of $110,000 for 

the Grand River Corridor Improvement Authority; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Corridor Improvement Authority Board has revised estimates on the 

amount and timing of projects; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Farmington City Council hereby 

amends the Fiscal Year 2024-25 budget for the Corridor Improvement 
Authority to reduce appropriations from $110,000 to $29,000 as shown in 
the 2024-25 Projected Budget column of the 2025-26 Proposed Budget. 

            
 



FUND 244 - CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY FUND

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2025-26
Amended Projected Manager

DESCRIPTION Actual Actual Budget Budget Proposed

CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY  FUND REVENUES

PROPERTY TAXES
PROPERTY TAXES, TIFA, REV 8,197 (7,141) 0 0 0
PROPERTY TAXES, TIFA 50,519 65,986 79,000 77,000 83,000
Total 58,716 58,845 79,000 77,000 83,000

GRANTS, OTHER
GRANTS, OTHER 0 0 0 15,000 5,000
Total 0 0 0 15,000 5,000

FARMINGTON HILLS CONTRIBUTION
FHILLS CONTRIBUTION 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0

OTHER REVENUE
INVESTMENT INCOME 6,091 9,766 8,000 9,000 11,200
Total 6,091 9,766 8,000 9,000 11,200

TOTAL CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT AUTH  FUND REVENUES 64,807 68,611 87,000 101,000 99,200

CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY  FUND EXPENDITURES

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0 0 0 29,000 13,000
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 16,782 110,000 0 0
B6-FARM-2023 0 0 0 0 2,100
Total 0 16,782 110,000 29,000 15,100

TOTAL CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT AUTH  FUND EXPENDITURES 0 16,782 110,000 29,000 15,100

Surplus/(Deficit) 64,807 51,829 (23,000) 72,000 84,100

    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 91,453 156,260 208,089 208,089 280,089
    ENDING FUND BALANCE 156,260 208,089 185,089 280,089 364,189

Click Here to Return to Table of Contents

CITY OF FARMINGTON 
FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 PROPOSED BUDGET

129

DRREVENUESREVENUES

D EXPENDITURESD EXPENDITURESDRA66RA00

6,096,0AFT00 0

00 FT58,84558,8

00 0T
(7,141(7,
65,98665 TFT

AF
RA
DR



 

 

 
City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: June 16, 2025 

Item 
Number 

7H 

Submitted by: City Manager, David Murphy 
Agenda Topic: Consideration to Amend Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Fiscal Year 2024-
25 Budget 
Proposed Motion:   
Move to Amend Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget 

Background:   
 
The BRA Board approved the attached budget amendment at their March 21, 2025 meeting.  
Significant changes include: 
 

1. For the Hillside Townes project, increasing Grants, Other and Contractual Services by 
$590,000 for project costs incurred related to demolition and environmental remediation 
that will be paid for through an EGLE grant. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Materials:  
 
Resolution - BRA Budget Amendment 1, FY 2023-24 
BRA Proposed Budget 25-26 



RESOLUTION 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE FARMINGTON CITY COUNCIL AMENDING THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2024-25 BUDGET FOR THE BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 
WHEREAS, City Council adopted a Fiscal Year 2024-25 appropriation of $34,900 for 

the Brownfield Redevlopment Authority; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Brownfield Redevelopment Board has revised estimates on the 

amount and timing of projects; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Farmington City Council hereby 

amends the Fiscal Year 2024-25 budget for the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority to increase appropriations from $34,900 to 
$626,982 as shown in the 2024-25 Projected Budget column of the 2025-
26 Proposed Budget. 

            
 



FUND 243 - BROWNFIELD DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2025-26
Amended Projected Manager

DESCRIPTION Actual Actual Budget Budget Proposed

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOP AUTHORITY REVENUES

General Revenues
INVESTMENT INCOME 978 1,226 1,000 1,400 1,400
Total General Revenues 978 1,226 1,000 1,400 1,400

Dept 000.11-TCF
Revenues
PROPERTY TAXES, OPERATING 4,301 3,599 10,200 10,362 10,900
Total Revenues 4,301 3,599 10,200 10,362 10,900

Expenditures
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 0 9,700 9,862 10,400
ADMIN & OVERHEAD 500 500 500 500 500
Total Expenditures 500 500 10,200 10,362 10,900

Surplus/(Deficit) -000.11 - TCF 3,801 3,099 0 0 0

Dept 000.12 - GLP - FARMINGTON STATE SAVINGS BANK
Revenues
PROPERTY TAXES, OPERATING 407 6,259 800 3,040 900
PROPERTY TAXES, OPR, REV (5) 0 0 0 0
DELQ PROPERTY TAXES, OPR GLP FARM STAT 5 0 0 0 0
DDA CONTRIBUTION 345 5,222 6,400 6,046 6,545
Total Revenues 752 11,481 7,200 9,086 7,445

Expenditures
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 10,826 4,700 9,570 1,892
ADMIN & OVERHEAD 320 1,000 2,500 2,500 2,500
Total Expenditures 320 11,826 7,200 12,070 4,392

Surplus/(Deficit) -000.12 - GLP-Farmington State Savings Bank 432 (345) 0 (2,984) 3,053

Click Here to Return to Table of Contents

CITY OF FARMINGTON 
FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 PROPOSED BUDGET

126

DRA5005

3,803,8

BANKBANK RAFT4,301301 3,599

00
500500 FT1,226

,301,301 3,599T
1,2261

TFT
RA
D



FUND 243 - BROWNFIELD DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2025-26
Amended Projected Manager

DESCRIPTION Actual Actual Budget Budget Proposed

Dept 000.13 - 9 MILE AND FARMINGTON
Revenues
PROPERTY TAXES, OPERATING 22,271 16,382 17,500 17,740 14,200
Total Revenues 22,271 16,382 17,500 17,740 14,200

Expenditures
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 18,020 20,000 15,500 12,550 12,200
ADMIN & OVERHEAD 3,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
Total Expenditures 21,020 22,000 17,500 14,550 14,200

Surplus/(Deficit) - 000.13 - 9 Mile and Farmington 1,251 (5,618) 0 3,190 0

Dept 000.14 - HILLSIDE TOWNES
Revenues
PROPERTY TAXES, OPERATING 0 0 0 0 39,500
GRANTS, OTHER 0 0 0 590,000 0
FEES AND COSTS 0 15,000 0 0 0
Total Revenues 0 15,000 0 590,000 39,500

Expenditures
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 0 0 590,000 34,903
ADMIN & OVERHEAD 0 0 0 0 4,597
Total Expenditures 0 0 0 590,000 39,500

Surplus/(Deficit) -000.14 - Hillside Townes 0 15,000 0 0 0

Click Here to Return to Table of Contents

CITY OF FARMINGTON 
FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 PROPOSED BUDGET

127

DRAFT,020,020 22,000

1,251 (5,6

0
0

FT
16,38216,

20,0000,000
00 2,00000T

6,36,3

TFT
RA
D



FUND 243 - BROWNFIELD DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2025-26
Amended Projected Manager

DESCRIPTION Actual Actual Budget Budget Proposed

Dept 000.15 - LEGION SQUARE
Revenues
PROPERTY TAXES, OPERATING 0 0 0 0 2,900
CIA CONTRIBUTION 0 0 0 0 2,100
Total Revenues 0 0 0 0 5,000

Expenditures
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0 0 0 0 4,500
ADMIN & OVERHEAD 0 0 0 0 500
Total Expenditures 0 0 0 0 5,000

Surplus/(Deficit) -000.15 - Legion Square 0 0 0 0 0

Surplus/(Deficit) 6,462 13,362 1,000 1,606 4,453

    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 1,355 7,817 21,179 21,179 22,785
    ENDING FUND BALANCE 7,817 21,179 22,179 22,785 27,238

Click Here to Return to Table of Contents

CITY OF FARMINGTON 
FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 PROPOSED BUDGET

128

DRAFT00 0

0

6,4626,462

1,3551,
7,817,8

FT000 00
00 0T

0

TFT



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: June 16, 2025 

Item 
Number 

7I 

Submitted by:   David Murphy, City Manager 
Agenda Topic:  Consideration to Amend Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget 
 
Proposed Motion:   
 
Move to adopt Budget Amendment Resolution #9 amending Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget.  

Background:    
 
This budget amendment adjusts for the reallocation of employee hours from projects for Water 
& Sewer to Public Works; the removal of more trees than originally anticipated along local 
streets; additional interest expense for the Civic theater due to the extension of the loan from the 
General Fund; and, the increase in revenue received for personal property tax reimbursements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Materials:  Budget Amendment Resolution #9 2024-25 
 

 



A RESOLUTION OF THE FARMINGTON CITY COUNCIL AMENDING THE 2024-2025 BUDGET.

WHEREAS, the loan from the General Fund to the Civic Theater has been extended through June 30 2026; and 

WHEREAS, revenues for the reimbursement of personal property tax were higher than anticipated; 

Fund: General Fund

Public Works $20,000

Reduction of Fund Balance $20,000

 To provide additional funding for Public Works projects

Fund: General Fund

Increase in Fund Balance $29,300

State Shared Revenue $29,300

 To record additional revenue for personal property

   tax reimbursements

Fund: Local Street

Operations & Maintenance $9,000

Reduction of Fund Balance $9,000

To provide additional funding for tree removals

Fund: Water & Sewer

Increase in Fund Balance $20,000

Operations & Maintenance $20,000

 To decrease funding for sewer televising. Funds reallocated

 for priorities in Public Works.

Fund: Farmington Civic Theater Fund

Debt Service $3,000

Reduction of Fund Balance $3,000

 To provide additional funding for interest expense due 

  to the extension of the loan from the General Fund to the 

  Farmington Civic Theater Fund through June 30, 2026

ROLL CALL

Ayes:

Nays:

Absent:

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED

                                                                        Meaghan Bachman, City Clerk

CITY OF FARMINGTON

RESOLUTION No. ____________________

Motion by,______________________________seconded by,_________________________________                          

WHEREAS, the City's 2024-2025 Fiscal Year Budget contained funding for the televising of sewer lines; and 

WHEREAS, the camera for televising the sewer lines will not arrive until late in the fiscal year; and 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Farmington City Council hereby adjusts the 2024-2025 budget as shown 

below; Budget Amendment No. 9

WHEREAS, staff time allocated to televising the sewer lines was reallocated to priorities in Public Works; and

WHEREAS, more tree removals were required than originally anticipated; and 



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: June 16, 2025 

Item 
Number 

7J 

Submitted by: Charles Eudy, Superintendent 
Agenda Topic:  Street Crack sealing/Over band RFP 
 
Proposed Motion:   
Move to award Fiscal Year 2025/26 Annual Crack Sealing/Over Band contract to K&B Asphalt 
Sealcoating Inc. per the RFP pending City Council approval the Fiscal Year 2025/26 budget and 
allow City Administration to execute the contract in the amount of $45,000, subject to any minor 
amendments to the final form of the City Manager’s office and the City Attorney’s office.  
 
Background:  
City Administration and Orchard Hiltz & McCliment (OHM) have developed a 4-year rotating 
pavement crack sealing/over band schedule for major and local street within the community.  
This will be the fifth year the City of Farmington has participated with several other sized 
communities to solicit the RFP for those services.  The City of Wixom established and 
coordinated the RFP and has recommended awarding the RFP to K&B Asphalt Sealcoating Inc. 
located at 120 N. Main Street Unit A, Adrian MI 49221. 
 
The City Administration has requested $50,000 to be allocated in the Fiscal Year 2025/26 
budget to conduct the crack sealing/over banding.  $45,000 is reserved for the crack sealing 
portion of this RFP, $5,000 is reserved for OHM to conduct inspections and supply payment 
applications of the crack sealing project.  Unit pricing for the crack sealing this year is $1.16 per 
pound.  K&B Asphalt Sealcoating Inc. could begin the project after July 1, 2025, which City 
Council will have approved the proposed budget prior to July 1, 2025.  
 
.           
 
 
 
 
Materials:  
Crack sealing/Sealcoating Bids 
City of Wixom Agenda March 12, 2024 
Areas completed map 
Areas not completed map  
 

 





Esri Community Maps Contributors, Province of Ontario, Oakland County, Michigan, Esri, TomTom, Garmin,
SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau, USDA, USFWS

888 .522 .67 1 1    |    ohm-adv i so r s .comP:\0101_0125\0111210020_Crack_Seal_Program\_GIS\ArcLayouts\Pro\CrackSealProgram\CrackSealProgram.aprx

Source:  Data provided by OHM Advisors, Farmington, Esri, and State of
Michigan. OHM Advisors does not warrant the accuracy of  the data and/or the
map. This document is intended to depict the approximate spatial location of  the
mapped features within the Community and all use is strictly at the user’s own
risk.

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 StatePlane Michigan South FIPS 2113 Feet Intl

Map Published:  January 4, 2024

1" = 1,500'

0 1,500 3,000

Feet

³

Crack Seal Map
Incomplete Zones

H
ill

vi
ew

8 Mile

M
iss

ion

D
ra

ke

H
al

st
ed Hillcrest

Flanders

Grand River

Meadowlark

F
le

m
in

g

B
ir

ch
w

o
o

d

W
ilm

ar
th

Oakland
Vicary

9Mile

P
ow

er

Alta Loma

Earl

L
oomisShiawassee

C
he

st
nu

t

Valley View

Smithfield

Lamar
Leelane

H
ay

d
en

Tall Pine

Ta
na

B
la

nc

ha
rd

Marblehead

Tall Oaks

Beaco
n

M
ay

fie
ld

Manor

Astor

Slocum

La
rk

sp
ur

She r w
oo

d

Saxony
Tre

e Hill

Cloverdale

G
ra

ce El

y

Glenvi ew

W
es

le
y

Lo
cu

st

Arundel

W
hi

tt
ak

er

State

G
ro

ve

H
aw

th
o

rn
e

Thomas

Maplenut

Ro
b

in
w

oo
d

La
ke

 W
ay

Li
b

er
ty

Hamlin

Folk
st

on
e

F
ar

m
in

g
to

n

M
ap

le

V
io

le
t

F
lo

ra
l

Li
l a

c

O
rchard

L
ake

Cass

Orchard

Conroy

G
ill

Kirby

Macomb

Schulte

Brittany Hill

James

Drakeshire

P
ro

sp
ec

t

Tw
in

Valley

HeritageHeatherton

Chatham Hill

P
ic

ke
tt

W
ar

ne
r

Lansbury

C
olch

este r

Lo
ng

ac
re

La
ur

el
w

o
o

d

Drake Heights

Moore

F
re

d
er

ic
k

M
an

ni
ng

R
ap

ha
el

B
ro

o
kd

al
e

M5

M
o

o
ne

y

Freedom

Chesley

Priority Level for 2024

1

2

3

Farmington Roads

Non-Public Roads

Not Sealable - Bad Condition

Secondary Roads

Major Roads

Freeway

Municipal Boundary

NOTES:
1. 2024 Priority 1 work shall begin
at the west end of the City and
work towards the east.

2. Saxony was crack sealed
in 2020 along with undergoing
concrete patch repairs. However,
over-banding shall be completed
in the areas where concrete patch
repairs were completed.















































































 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date:  
June 16, 2025 

Item 
Number 

7K 

Submitted by:   
Charles Eudy, Superintendent 
Agenda Topic:   2025 Sidewalk Program 
Proposed Motion:   
Move to approve Change Order No. 10 extending the 2020 Sidewalk Replacement Contract to 
Luigi Ferdinandi & Sons during the 2025/26 Fiscal Year not to exceed $320,100.    

Background:   
In conjunction with the city’s consulting engineer’s Orchard Hiltz & McCliment Advisors (OHM), 
bids were solicited for the Farmington 2020/21 Sidewalk Program.  The project was awarded to 
Luigi Ferdinandi & Son Cement Company Incorporated of Roseville Michigan at the March 2020 
Council Meeting.   
 
OHM has reviewed the unit pricing from Luigi Ferdinandi & Sons.  There will be no unit pricing 
increase from FY 24/25 to FY 25/26.  The unit pricing is comparable to other municipal sidewalk 
projects.  Public Works Administration and OHM are recommending extending the contract with 
Luigi Ferdinandi & Sons Cement Company Incorporated, located at 16481 Common Road, 
Roseville, MI, 48066 an addition year for the 2025/26 Sidewalk Replacement Program   City 
Administration has budgeted $320,100 this fiscal year for construction.  Additional $33,000 
funding has been allocated for inspections and project management.   
 
With the contractor’s aggressive schedule anticipate completing the sidewalk replacements in 
areas near Prospect Street near the High School, Shiawassee Road west of Farmington Road, 
Glenview Street, and the Alta Loma area.  Focusing on the sidewalk replacement program in 
this area is the most cost effective to address, the open sidewalk work orders, and conduct 
repairs in the largest area of use.                                                                
 
Luigi’s Ferdinandi & Sons has been a great contractor to work with and has worked well with the 
residents, and OHM conducting sidewalk improvement projects.   
 
Materials:  
Sidewalk Change Order No. 10 
Sidewalk Approximate Quantities 
Additional Locations 25/26 
 



 
 
 

 

May 7, 2025 
 
 
Mr. Chuck Eudy 
Public Works Superintendent 
City of Farmington 
33720 W. 9 Mile Rd. 
Farmington, MI 48335 
 
RE: Recommendation of Award – 2025 Sidewalk Program 
 
Dear Mr. Eudy: 
 
In 2020, the City requested bids for the Sidewalk Program job and Luigi Ferdinandi & Son Cement Co., Inc., located at 
16481 Common Road, Roseville MI, 48066, was the low bidder selected for the project. In each subsequent year since 
2020, the City has extended the contract with them in order to complete even more sidewalk improvements throughout 
different areas of the City. 
 
The City has planned to continue/extend the contract of the Sidewalk Program this year (2025) to complete sidewalk 
improvements within the area bounded by Grand River Ave and Freedom Rd, to the north and south, and Farmington 
Rd and Gill Rd, to the east and west. We recommend that Luigi Ferdinandi & Son Cement Co., Inc. is, once again, awarded 
the job. OHM Advisors has continued to have favorable experience working with this contractor within the City of 
Farmington over the existence of this program. We’ve spoken directly with the contractor regarding the scope of work 
and anticipated project schedule, and they indicated that they are capable of completing all work items within the allotted 
project timeline. Further, the contractor has committed to holding their same unit prices from 2024 for this year as an 
added benefit to the City and this program. 
 
Based on the above evaluation, it is recommended that the 2025 Sidewalk Program contract be 
awarded/extended to Luigi Ferdinandi & Son Cement Co., Inc. of Roseville, MI in the not to exceed amount 
of $320,100.00. 
 
We look forward to continuing to provide our professional services on this project through the construction phase of 
work. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to reach out. 
 
Sincerely, 
OHM Advisors 
 
     
   __________________________________ 
 

Matthew D. Parks, P.E.     Austin Downie, P.E. 
 
cc: David Murphy, City Manager 
 File 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P:\0101_0125\0111190030_2020_Sidewalk_Program\_Construction\2025 Work\Correspondence\2025 Sidewalk 
Program_Recommendation of Award_5-7-25.docx 



Street Total - minus LS items Total SFT 4" 6" 6" Ramp Curb/Gutter ADA SW ADA Ramp
Item Unit Price 2025 Plan Total Shawasse St. 43,580.17$                                                       3635 3320 75 240 70 6 8

1 Audio Video Route Survey, Div. I Ls $3,031.88 1 $3,031.88 Grand River Ave 33,866.04$                                                       3475 3350 125 0 0 0 0
2 Mobilization, Max. $4000, Div. I Ls $3,031.88 1 $3,031.88 Glenview 41,500.31$                                                       4240 3940 300 0 0 0 0
3 Traffic Maintenance and Control, Div. I Ls $3,031.88 1 $3,031.88 Liberty 10,338.69$                                                       1050 925 125 0 0 0 0
4 Curb and Gutter, Rem Ft $12.13 200 $2,425.50 Farmington 2,668.05$                                                         275 275 0 0 0 0 0
5 Sidewalk, Rem Syd $21.83 4842.44 $105,708.14 Schulte 53,185.15$                                                       4615 3810 75 730 80 0 7
6 Pavt, Rem Syd $21.83 10 $218.30 Fleming 15,038.10$                                                       1625 1525 100 0 0 0 0
7 Sidewalk Ramp, Rem Syd $21.83 1 $21.83 Gill 16,402.44$                                                       1675 1550 125 0 0 0 0
8 Excavation, Earth Cyd $60.64 10 $606.38 Freedom 16,523.72$                                                       1675 1450 225 0 0 0 0
9 Undercut Aggregate, 21AA Limestone Cyd $36.38 10 $363.83 Cass 21,314.08$                                                       2055 1800 175 80 0 4 0
10 Aggregate Base, 21AA Limestone, 8 inch Syd $21.83 10 $218.30 Macomb 7,790.71$                                                         681 585 16 80 0 4 0
11 Maintenance Aggregate, 21AA Limestone Ton $0.01 10 $0.11 Moore 18,221.57$                                                       1875 1850 25 0 0 0 0
12 Structure Cover, Adj Ea $303.19 6 $1,819.13 Alta Loma 52,421.12$                                                       5215 4725 275 215 0 0 4
13 Hand Patching Ton $0.01 1 $0.01 Oakland 2,056.82$                                                         212 212 0 0 0 0 0
14 Conc Pavt, Nonreinf, 8 inch Syd $98.23 10 $982.33 Wilmarth 17,124.03$                                                       1545 1225 80 240 0 5 1
15 Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det F4 Ft $48.51 200 $9,702.00 State 55,398.42$                                                       4615 2955 460 1200 50 14 3
16 Curb Ramp Opening, Conc Ft $48.51 10 $485.10 Courtland 13,825.35$                                                       1425 1425 0 0 0 0 0
17 Detectable Warning Surface Ft $48.51 280 $13,582.80 Others 36,172.69$                                                       3694 3419 275 0 0 0 0
18 Sidewalk Ramp, Conc, 6 inch Sft $9.70 2785 $27,020.07 Totals 457,427.47$                                                    43582 38341 2456 2785 200 33 23
19 Sidewalk, Conc, 4 inch Sft $7.28 38341 $278,988.29
20 Sidewalk, Conc, 6 inch Sft $8.49 2456 $20,849.60
21 Irrigation Repair Allowance Dlr $1,736.44 1 $1,736.44

Total $473,823.75

PROJECT TOTALS



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date:  
June 16, 2025 

Item 
Number 

7L 

Submitted by:  
Charles Eudy, Superintendent 
Agenda Topic:  
Consideration to approve City of Farmington Public Works Department to join SOCPWA 
(Southeastern Oakland County Public Works Association Public Works Mutual Aid Authority) 
Joint and Cooperative Agreement for use of personnel and equipment during emergencies. 
Proposed Motion:   
Move to approve for the City of Farmington Public Works Department to join SOCPWA 
(Southeastern Oakland County Public Works Association Public Works Mutual Aid Authority) 
Joint and Cooperative Agreement for use of personnel and equipment during emergencies.   

Background:   
Many surrounding communities are members of SOCPWA.  Farmington Department of Public 
Works has two registered members, the Superintendent and Assistant Superintendent.  The 
Joint and Cooperative Agreement can fill a gap in time in the event of an emergency prior to the 
State declaration of an emergency and extend after an emergency has been declared.          
 
The SOCPWA (Southeastern Oakland County Public Works Association Public Works Mutual 
Aid Authority) Joint and Cooperative Agreement for use of personnel and equipment during 
emergencies to assist Public Works Departments during and after emergencies or disaster.  The 
SOCPWA Joint and Cooperative Agreement is another resource for the Public Works 
Department to use in the event of emergency or disaster managing and operating the City of 
Farmington clean-up efforts.  Several communities assisted the City of Farmington and 
Farmington Hills following the July 2021 weather event, even though Farmington was not a 
member of the previous agreement. 
 
SOCPWA has an emergency notification system that is routinely tested, and when a member 
needs equipment, parts, or staff.  Members can respond via email or text messaging 24/7/365.        
 
 
 
      
  

Materials:  
SOCPWA Mutual Aid Authority Agreement 



 1 

JOINT AND COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT  

FOR USE OF 

PERSONNEL AND EQUIPMENT DURING EMERGENCIES 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

SOUTHEASTERN OAKLAND COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS ASSOCIATION 

PUBLIC WORKS MUTUAL AID AUTHORITY 

 

I.  PURPOSE 
 The member communities of the Southeastern Oakland County Public Works 
Association (SOCPWA) recognize that they have authority pursuant to the provisions of 
Public Act 35 of 1951, an Act to authorize intergovernmental contracts between 
municipal corporations and to authorize any municipal corporation to contract with any 
other person or any other municipal corporation; to furnish any lawful municipal service 
to property outside the corporate limits of the first municipal corporation for 
consideration. The result establishes a regional mutual aid association, to be known as 
the Public Works Mutual Aid Authority, representative of the various communities with 
authority and responsibilities relating to utilization of resources to counteract natural and 
man-made disasters common to all communities, together with the power and authority 
to implement such services as set forth herein. 
 
II. DEFINITION OF TERMS 
 For purposes of this Agreement, the terms defined in this section shall have the 
meanings given them. 
 

1. Party means a governmental unit which is a party to this Agreement. 
2. Eligible party means a governmental or corporation unit which is entitled to 

become a party to this Agreement, at its own option. 
3. Requesting party means a party which requests assistance from other parties. 
4. Responding party means a party which provides assistance to a requesting 

party. 
5. Assistance includes personnel, materials and equipment. 
6. Requesting official means the person who has been designated by the 

requesting party to request assistance from other parties. 
7. Responding official means the person who has been designated by a party to 

determine whether and to what extent that party should provide assistance to a 
requesting party. 

8. Emergency means a sudden and unforeseen situation requiring immediate action 
beyond the requesting party’s capability. 

9. Authority Secretary means the secretary of the Public Works Mutual Aid 
Authority. 



 2 

10. Public Works Mutual Aid Authority means the organization formed by the 
Southeastern Oakland County Public Works Association to meet emergency 
situations within the boundaries of its member communities. 

 
III.  PARTIES 

1. The parties to this Agreement shall consist of members of the Southeastern 
Oakland County Public Works Association and shall be known as the Public 
Works Mutual Aid Authority.  Upon the adoption of a resolution by its governing 
body, an executed copy of this Agreement shall be forwarded by the member 
party together with a certified copy of the resolution authorizing the Agreement. 

 
2. The Authority Secretary shall maintain a current list of the parties to this 

Agreement.  Whenever there is a change of the parties to this Agreement, the 
Authority Secretary shall notify the designated responding official of each of the 
parties of such change. 

 
IV.  PROCEDURE 

1. Each party shall designate and keep on file with the Authority Secretary the 
name of the person of that party who shall be its requesting official and 
responding official.  A party may designate alternate officials to act in the 
absence of the primary official. 

 
2. Whenever, in the opinion of a requesting official of a party, there is a need for 

assistance from other parties to assist the requesting party, such requesting 
official may, at his or her discretion, call upon the responding official of any other 
party to furnish assistance to and within the boundaries of the requesting party.  
It is the intention of the parties to this Agreement to cooperate in the event of an 
emergency by making available to a requesting party necessary or requested 
personnel, materials, and equipment without undue delay. 

 
3. Upon the receipt of a request for assistance from a party, the responding official 

for any other party may authorize and direct the personnel of the responding 
party to provide assistance to the requesting party.  Whether the responding 
party shall provide such assistance to the requesting party, and, if so, to what 
extent such assistance shall be provided, shall be determined solely by the 
responding official subject to such supervision and direction as may be 
applicable for him or her within the governmental structure of the party by which 
he or she is employed.  Failure to provide assistance will not result in liability to 
any party. 

 
4. When a responding party provides assistance under the terms of this Agreement, 

it may in turn request assistance from other parties as “back-up” during the time 
that it is providing assistance outside its boundaries. 

 
5. Whenever a responding party has provided assistance to a requesting party, the 

responding official may at any time recall such assistance or any part thereof to 



 3 

the responding party, if the responding official in his best judgment deems this is 
in the best interest of his own agency. 

 
6. When a responding party supplies equipment and personnel to a requesting 

party, said equipment and personnel shall remain under the direction and control 
of the responding party; shall be paid by the responding party; shall be protected 
by the Worker’s Compensation of the responding party; and shall otherwise be 
deemed to be performing their regular duties for the responding party.  However, 
the responding party shall undertake to coordinate with the requesting party the 
assistance which it provides.  The requesting party shall provide all routine 
fueling and servicing of respondents’ equipment and materials, and shall assume 
all costs thereof during the assistance period. 

 
7. A responding party shall be responsible for its own personnel, equipment, and 

materials and for injuries or death to any personnel, or damage to any such 
equipment or materials, except that unused equipment and materials provided by 
the responding party shall be returned to the responding party by the requesting 
party when circumstances permit this to be done.   
 

8. The requesting and responding parties may review any equipment repaired to 
determine if such repair was directly related to the emergency operation.  If 
mutually agreed that repairs are required, they shall be the responsibility of the 
requesting party.  Any disagreement which cannot be resolved by the responding 
and requesting parties shall be resolved by a committee established from the 
Public Works Mutual Aid Authority.  Materials and supplies used by the 
responding party at the request or direction of the requesting party shall be 
reimbursed by the requesting party to the responding party. 

 
9. An emergency response by a responding party, which is provided on a “gratis” 

basis, shall be limited to a maximum of forty-eight (48) hours duration.  After such 
time, the responding party shall be reimbursed for labor and equipment by the 
requesting party.  During this period of time, the requesting party shall actively 
seek to engage outside contractors to conduct the work being done by the 
responding party so as to expedite the return of the responding party to its home 
community. 

 
10. The responding party shall maintain such records of the cost of labor, equipment 

and materials provided; and hours of work or operation as deemed necessary for 
recovery of costs in the event the incident becomes eligible for Federal or State 
Disaster Assistance.  If declared eligible, these costs shall then be reimbursed by 
the requesting party in full or in a prorata share of assistance provided. 
 

11. The requesting party shall not be responsible for any injuries, losses, or damages 
to persons or property arising out of the acts of any of the personnel of a 
responding party.  Nor shall the responding party be responsible for injuries, 
losses or damages arising out of the acts of any of the personnel of the 
requesting party or the personnel of any other responding party. 



 4 

 
12. Technical service and assistance of non-emergency nature may be requested 

and/or provided by the parties to this Agreement. 
 
V.  INSURANCE 
 Each party to this Agreement shall maintain appropriate insurance policies covering 
personal and public liability. Said policies shall cover damage or injury caused by 
negligent operation of its vehicles while operating under the terms of this Agreement 
outside of its corporate limits or contract areas. 
 
VI.  RESPONSIBILITY PROVISION 
 Each party agrees that it shall be responsible for any and all claims, costs, actions, 
causes of action, losses or expenses – including attorney fees, resulting from or caused 
by its acts or omissions, the acts or omissions of its employees, officers, or officials, 
pursuant to this Agreement.  
 
 Each party shall be responsible for any claims made against that party and for the 
acts of its respective officers, officials and employees. For any claims that may arise 
from the performance of this Agreement, each party shall seek its own legal 
representation and bear the costs associated with such representation including any 
attorney fees. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, none of the parties shall 
have any right under any legal principle to be indemnified by either of the other parties 
or any of the other parties’ respective officers, officials, or employees in connection with 
any claim. For purposes of this paragraph, the term “claims” shall mean and include any 
alleged losses, claims, complaints, demands for relief or damages, suits, causes of 
action, proceedings, judgments, deficiencies, liability, penalties, litigation, costs and/or 
expenses of any kind which are imposed upon, incurred by, or asserted against a party.  
 
 Nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor shall it operate, to diminish, delegate, 
divest, impair, or contravene any constitutional, statutory, and/or other legal right, 
privilege, power, obligation, duty, capacity, immunity or character of office including, but 
not limited to, governmental immunity on behalf of the parties to this Agreement or any 
of their respective employees, appointees, officials or agents.  
 
VII.  COMPLETE AGREEMENT 

The parties agree that the conditions set forth in this Agreement sets forth all terms 
and conditions of this Agreement. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements or 
understandings between the parties.  There are no promises, conditions, or 
understandings other than those stated herein, and, that any prior negotiations, terms or 
conditions discussed shall not constitute a part of this Agreement. The term “agreement” 
as used in this clause shall include any future written amendments, modifications, or 
supplements made in accordance herewith. 

 
VIII.  APPROVALS 

All of the parties have taken all actions and secured all approvals necessary to 
authorize and complete this Agreement. The person signing this agreement on 

 



 5 

behalf of each municipality have legal authority to sign this Agreement and bind the 
parties to the terms and conditions contained herein. 
 
IX. WITHDRAWAL, TERM, AND TERMINATION 
 This Agreement shall be for an Initial Term of five (5) years, from _______________, 
2025 through ____________________, 2030.  If this Agreement is not terminated as 
provided below, it shall automatically renew annually for a Renewal Term of one (1) 
year, subject to the terms and conditions below.  The Renewal Terms possible under 
this Section are not limited. Any party may withdraw from the Association at any time 
upon thirty (30) days written notice to the Authority. The Authority Secretary shall 
thereupon give notice of such withdrawal, and of the effective date thereof, to all other 
parties, as hereinbefore provided. 
 
X. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES.   
 This Agreement is not intended to, and does not, create any special or other duty, 
obligation, promise, benefit or right to services not herein described in favor or for the 
benefit of any person, entity, or organization that is not a named party to this 
Agreement.  The parties will not authorize third party use of the system without prior 
approval of those entering into this Agreement. 
 
XI. ASSIGNMENTS.   
 The rights, duties and obligations under this Agreement are not assignable and may 
not be delegated by any party, except with the written approval of the other parties to 
this Agreement. 
 
XII. NOTICES.   
 Notices under this Agreement shall be directed to current designated the 
Requesting/Responding Official identified on file with the Secretary. 
 
XIII. AMENDMENTS.   
 Amendments of this Agreement shall be in writing, approved by resolution of the 
councils and boards of the parties, and be signed by authorized representatives of the 
parties. 
 
XIV. SEVERABILITY.   
 If a court of competent jurisdiction finds a term, or condition, of this Agreement to be 
illegal or invalid, then the term, or condition, shall be deemed severed from this 
Agreement. All other terms, conditions, and provisions of this Agreement shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
XV. APPLICABLE LAW.   
 This Agreement is made and entered into in the State of Michigan and shall in all 
respects be interpreted, enforced and governed under the laws of the State of Michigan. 
The language of all parts of this Agreement is intended to and, in all cases, shall be 
construed as a whole, according to its fair meaning, and not construed strictly for or 
against any party. As used in this Agreement, the singular or plural number, possessive 



 6 

or non-possessive, shall be deemed to include the other whenever the context so 
suggests or requires. 
 
XVI. NO WAIVER.  
 Absent an express written waiver, the failure of a party to pursue any right granted 
under this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of that right regarding any existing 
or subsequent breach or default under this Agreement. No failure or delay on the part of 
a party in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver 
thereof, nor shall a single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege preclude 
any other or further exercise of any other right, power or privilege. 
 
XVII. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.   
 Each party shall comply with all federal, state, and local statutes, ordinances, 
regulations, administrative rules, and requirements applicable to its activities performed 
under this Agreement. 
 
XVIII. FILING.   
 As provided in MCL 124.510, this Agreement and any amendments of it shall be filed 
with the Oakland County Clerk and Michigan Secretary of State before taking effect. 
 
XIX. EFFECTIVE DATE 
 This Agreement shall become effective on____________________, 20_____.   
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, on behalf of their governmental unit, have 
executed this Agreement pursuant to authorization by the City/Township of 
___________________, MICHIGAN on the _______ day of ____________, 20_____. 
 
   
  City/Township of _________________ 
 
WITNESS: ______________________ By: ____________________________ 
   Chief Elected Official 
 
WITNESS: ______________________ By: ____________________________ 
   Clerk 
 

Date: __________________________ 
 
 
SOUTHEASTERN OAKLAND COUNTY 

  PUBLIC WORKS ASSOCIATION 
 
WITNESS: _____________________ By: ____________________________ 
 
 
  Date: __________________________ 



 

 1 

CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS 
OF THE 

SOUTHEASTERN OAKLAND COUNTY  
PUBLIC WORKS ASSOCIATION’S 

PUBLIC WORKS MUTUAL AID AUTHORITY 

 
ARTICLE I 

Name and Purpose 
Section I: This organization shall be known as the “Public Works Mutual Aid 
Authority”. 
 
Section II: The purpose of membership in this association shall be to assist member 
communities in emergency situations, to exchange ideas, equipment, and methods of 
dealing with emergencies, and to protect the lives and property within member 
communities in the case of any emergency or disaster. 
 

ARTICLE II 
Membership 

Section I: Membership in this authority shall refer to public works departments, or its 
equivalent department. 
 
Section II: Any public works department or organization holding membership in the 
Southeastern Oakland County Public Works Association, and that can be of reciprocal 
service to other members of said organizations evidenced by its maintenance of a level 
of equipment and labor sufficient to meet the ordinary and routine operations and 
services within its community, and are from an incorporated Village or City, a Township, 
or an authority created by such bodies, and is approved by a simple majority of the 
membership, shall be eligible for membership in this authority. 
 
Section III: The following shall be known as members of this authority as of November 
14, 2012: 
 

Auburn Hills Berkley Birmingham Bloomfield Township 

Clawson Farmington Hills Ferndale Hazel Park 

Huntington Woods Lathrup Village Madison Heights Novi 

Oak Park Orchard Lake Village Pleasant Ridge Rochester 

Royal Oak Southfield SOCRRA SOCWA 

Village of Franklin    

 
ARTICLE III 

Dues 
Section I: Each member shall pay an annual membership fee of $10.00 per year, 
which shall be due and payable on January 31 of each year. 
 
 



 

 2 

 
 
 

ARTICLE IV 
Officers 

Section I: The officers of the Southeastern Oakland County Public Works 
Association shall be Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, and a Secretary-Treasurer, and 
shall constitute the Executive Committee of the Public Works Mutual Aid Authority. 
 
Section II: The Chairperson shall have the following duties: To call all regular and 
special meetings; to preside and preserve order at all meetings; to appoint committees; 
to see that subordinate officers execute the obligations and duties of their respective 
offices to the best of their ability. 
 
Section III: The Vice-Chairperson shall have the following duties: To assist the 
Chairperson in the discharge of his or her regular duties, and in the event of the 
absence of the Chairperson, to assume the duties of Chairperson. 
 
Section IV: The Secretary-Treasurer shall have the following duties: To call the roll; to 
keep a record of all proceedings of the Authority; to collect all dues and other monies 
due the Authority; to pay out said monies on the order of the Authority; and to send 
notices of all regular and special meetings of the Authority.  The Secretary-Treasurer 
shall make an itemized report of all income and expenses to be presented at the first 
regular meeting of each year.  In addition, the Secretary-Treasurer shall maintain a 
current list of all members in the Authority. 
 

ARTICLE V 
Meetings 

Section I: The regular meeting of the Authority shall be held in January of each year.  
The time and location shall be determined by the executive committee. 
 
Section II: Special meetings shall be called by the Chairperson with at least seven (7) 
days written notice to the membership. 
 
Section III: A simple majority of the membership shall constitute a quorum. 
 
Section IV: The Roberts Rules of Order shall govern. 
 
Section V: Each member shall have one (1) vote. 
 

ARTICLE VI 
Elections 

Section I: The election of officers shall be held at the regular meeting of each year.  
This election shall be by secret ballot, or by open ballot, at the selection of the 
membership. 
 



 

 3 

Section II: The officers of the Authority shall be elected for a term of two (2) years. 
 
Section III: In the event of a vacancy occurring in the office of the Chairperson, the 
Vice Chairperson shall succeed to that office.  The Chairperson shall appoint 
replacement officers for all vacancies. 
 

 
 
 

ARTICLE VII 
Committees 

Section I: The Authority shall have the following annual committee: Executive.  Other 
committees may be formed to serve in an ad-hoc capacity, at the discretion of the 
executive committee. 
 
Section II: Any committee shall have the authority to request assistance from any 
members of the Authority. 
 
Section III: It shall be the duty of the Executive Committee to handle all matters that 
pertain to state legislation on matters of importance to the Authority. 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
Amendment and Dissolution 

Section I: No amendment shall be made to these By-Laws unless proposed at the 
regular meeting in writing. 
 
Section II: An amendment requires a two-thirds majority vote of the entire 
membership for acceptance. 
 
Section III: This Authority may be disbanded by a three-fourths vote of the entire 
membership of the Authority, and a published or served notice shall be given to all 
members for that purpose at least one month before such a vote shall be taken. 
 
**************************************************************************************************** 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: June 16, 2025 

Item 
Number 

7M 

Submitted by: Charles Eudy, Superintendent 
Agenda Topic:  Draw Request No. 3 Final 
 
Proposed Motion:   
Move to approve Draw Request No. 3 the Warner Home Grant Funding Exterior Repairs Phase 
1 to R. Graham Construction LLC in the amount of $ 2,235.00. 
Background:  
The ad hoc committee met to consider the initial scope of action to preserve the condition of the 
Warner Home using the Grant Funding the City of Farmington received from the State of 
Michigan.   
 
The Grant Funding Exterior Repairs will include replacing the shingle roofs on the Gardeners 
Shed, Outdoor Kitchen, Outdoor Restroom, the cedar shakes on the Gazebo,  replacing the low-
pitch second floor roof, tuckpoint the three false chimneys, and one former operational chimney.  
 
To complete the chimney tuckpointing a basket lift was required, the chimney tuckpointing 
required the chimneys to be torn down to the coin work then reconstructed and a new cap 
installed in replicating to the current chimney design and appearance.              
 
To date the gazebo cedar shakes have been removed, new sheathing placed, water/ice shield, 
and new shingles, outdoor kitchen, gardeners shed, and outdoor accessible restroom roof 
replacements have been completed.  The chimney tuck pointing/repairs has been completed.  
The low pitched second floor roofs have been replaced.  Roofing materials to be used for the 
rear porch roof replacement have been returned and the rear porch roof replacement has been 
removed from the scope of this project.  
 
Due to the condition of the facia board on the gardeners shed, and segments of the second floor 
low pitched roof.  R. Graham Construction was instructed to replace the facia boards and gutter.  
The increased the scope of the project resulted in an additional $1,600, plus the $685 building 
permit expense.  Contingency funds will cover the increased scope of work.         
 
Public Works Superintendent recommends approving the Warner Home Grant Funding Exterior 
Repairs Draw Request No. 3 (Final) to R. Graham Construction LLC located at 30966 Grand 
River Ave., Farmington MI 48336 in the amount of $2,235.00.  
 
Materials:  
R. Graham Construction, LLC Draw Request No. 3 (Final), dated 6/5/2025 
 



DRAW REQUEST 

R.GRAHAM CONSTRUCTION, LLC 
www.RGRAHAMCONSTRUCTION.COM   

30966 Grand River Ave., Farmington, MI  48336 

Phone (248) 987-1155 Fax (248) 987-1161 

  

          Date: June 5, 2025 

 

Name: CITY OF FARMINGTON 

Address: 23600 LIBERTY ST  

City:  FARMINGTON, MI    Phone: 248-474-5500 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

JOB SITE: PO#18802   

GOVERNOR WARNER MANSION  

33805 GRAND RIVER AVE,   

FARMINGTON, MI  

  

GOVERNOR WARNER RENOVATIONS:  $39,500.00 

- SIGNED APPROVAL 9/17/2024  

  

ADDITIONAL CHARGES TO BASE CONTRACT:  

- NEW FASCIA WOOD AND GUTTERS ON REAR OF HOUSE BOTH 

SIDES:  
$ 1,600.00 

- BUILDING PERMIT PB24-00271:  $  685.00 

  

PAYMENTS RECEIVED AS FOLLOWS:  

- DEPOSIT: 10/25/24 <$19,750.00> 

- DRAW PAYMENT: 11/21/24 <$15,800.00> 

              

***CREDIT FOR CHANGE ORDER TO PORCH AREA. PORTION OF PROJECT        

CANCELED PER DPW/ CHUCK EUDY <$4,000.00> 

    

    

                                                                                    AMOUNT DUE $2,235.00 

 



Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 

Council Meeting  
Date: June,16,2025 

Item 
Number 

Submitted by: Bob Houhanisin, Public Safety Director 

Agenda Topic:  
Request to Approve the Purchase Six (6) Sets of Firefighting Turnout Gear. 

Proposed Motion:  Approve FY 2024/25 budget request to purchase Six (6) sets of Globe GX3 
firefighting turnout gear from MacQueen Fire Equipment in the amount of $18,319.18.    

The public safety department requests the purchase of six (6) sets of Globe GX3 firefighting 
turnout gear.  This equipment will be issued to new Public Safety Officers and Firefighters.  This 
purchase is part of the approved 2024/25 fiscal year budget.  

Materials Attached: 
None 

7N



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: June,16,2025 

Item 
Number 

 

Submitted by: Bob Houhanisin, Public Safety Director 

Agenda Topic:  
Request to Approve the Purchase one (1) new Avigilon NVR5 Standard Server for the camera 
system. 
 

Proposed Motion:  Approve the purchase of one (1) Avigilon NVR5 Standard Server, Model 
NVR5-STD-48TB-S19-NA from Advanced Satellite Communications Inc. (A.S.C.) in the amount 
of $28,841.08 

In 2016, the department upgraded its basic video camera system. The previous system only 
included cameras in the cell block and the front desk. However, the new system added cameras 
to the exterior and interior of city hall.  In 2020, the camera system was upgraded to include 
cameras in the downtown area, including the Sundquist Pavilion.  Recent upgrades have placed 
additional cameras at the DPW and will expand the footprint of the downtown camera network.  
These cameras have been invaluable, solving crimes, observing traffic patterns, and resolving 
disputes. 
 
The original server purchased in 2016 utilizes Windows 7, which is no longer serviceable and 
cannot be upgraded. The second server, which supports the 2020 project, utilizes Windows 10 
and will no longer be supported in October of 2025. The current servers do not allow for camera 
expansion. 
 
A.S.C has a server in stock that will meet the current needs of the system and will allow for 
upgrades and additional cameras to the network.  The new server will operate Windows 11, 
which is supported and can be updated by Microsoft Windows. The new server is one year old, 
however A.S.C discounted the cost by $5,000 and will extend the workmanship warranty from 
30 days to 180 day. The service life of the new equipment is estimated to be 7-10 years.  
 
The attached agreement with A.S.C is to replace and combine both servers into one unit. 
 
I have coordinated with the Director of Finance, Jaime Pohlman, and the funds are available 
within the Public Safety FY24/25 budget, without requiring the use of fund balance. 
 
 

Materials Attached:  
A.S.C Quote  



Bid Opening - City of Farmington  
Water Sewer Rate Study 

Date: May 27, 2025 - Time: 3:00 p.m. 
 
 

  
Contractor/Vendor 

 

Time 
Received 

Bid 
Bond 
Yes/No 

 
Total Bid 
Amount 

 CROWE LLP 5/14/2025 
1:33 pm 

 $18-20K 
Base 
 

 RAFTELIS 5/14/2025 
9:38 PM 

 $39,312 
 

 STANTEC 5/14/2025 
9:13 PM 

 $78,470 
 

 MUNICIPAL 
ANALYTICS 

5/13/2025 
5:21 PM 

 $21,375 
 

 BENDZINSKI & 
CO 

5/7/2025   
6:42 PM 

 $23,000 
 

 



Avigilon Security Camera Server Quote #002873 v1

Advanced Satellite Communications

Prepared by:Prepared For:

City of Farmington - Police

P: (248) 474-4700
E: PHouhanisin@farmgov.com

P: 734-793-1423
E: abarber@advancedsat.com

Adam Barber
12137 Merriman Road
Livonia, MI 48150

Bob Houhanisin
23600 Liberty
Farmington, MI 48335

Date Issued:

06.12.2025

Expires:

06.30.2025

Scope of Work

Scope of Work – Avigilon Server Replacement

Client: City of Farmington
Project: Avigilon NVR5 Server Installation
Prepared by: A.S.C. Security Systems

Overview:

A.S.C. Security Systems will provide and install one (1) new Avigilon NVR5 Standard Server, model NVR5-STD-48TB-S19-NA,
to replace the two existing Avigilon recording appliances currently in use by the City of Farmington. 

Scope of Work:

 Supply one (1) Avigilon NVR5-STD-48TB-S19-NA server (48TB storage, rack-mounted).

 Remove two (2) existing Avigilon recording appliances from service.

 Supply and install two (2) 24-Port POE Network Switches

o Install Note: The existing camera cables are run directly to the recording appliances.  To maintain an ordered 

system architecture, ASC will use the existing rack and install (2) Patch Panels for the camera feeds.  The 
cameras will then be connected to network POE switches via patch cables.

 The wall mounted rack in the IT room will hold camera cable terminations and the new network POE Switches.  A.S.C. 
will provide and install one (1) Rack Mounted UPS Battery Back-up to protect that equipment

o Install Note: The Floor Rack holding the existing appliances/new NVR has a UPS existing. 

 Terminate Camera cables to new network POE Switches

 Transfer all existing camera licenses and configurations to the new server.

 Migrate recorded video archives to the new server (as storage and format allow).

 Configure the new NVR to operate within the City of Farmington’s network environment.

 Ensure integration with existing Avigilon Control Center (ACC) software.

 Test all connected cameras for proper operation and recording to the new NVR.

 Provide basic training or orientation on the new system interface if requested.

Page: 1 of 4Quote #002873 v1



Scope of Work

Exclusions / Assumptions:

 The City will provide access to all necessary network resources and administrative credentials.

 Any network infrastructure changes (switches, cabling, IP address configuration) are not included unless otherwise 
specified.

Warranty & Support:

 Dell Next Business Day Onsite After Remote Diagnosis. End Date Nov. 30, 2026  

 Dell ProSupport One for Data Center. End Date Nov. 30, 2028

 A.S.C. workmanship is warranted for 180 days post-installation.

 Optional extended service and maintenance plans available upon request.

Payment Terms:

 50% of the installation amount is due upon project approval.

 Balance is due Net 30 days post-installation.

Customer's Responsibilities

The City of Farmington will provide the following items for this installation: 

 Grant A.S.C. Security Systems technicians access to all areas required for the installation, including server rooms, 
network closets, and camera management stations.

 Ensure Rack Space and Power Availability: Confirm that adequate rack space (19" rack) and power (standard server 
power outlet with backup UPS if available) are available at the installation location.

 Network Configuration:
Provide network configuration details and support, including:

o Static IP address for the new NVR.

o Subnet mask, default gateway, and DNS settings.

o Any port forwarding or firewall changes necessary for remote access (if applicable).

 Backup of Critical Data: If specific archived footage or system settings must be preserved, notify A.S.C. in advance and 
ensure a backup is completed before the appliance removal process begins.

 Designate a point of contact to coordinate installation scheduling.

Page: 2 of 4Quote #002873 v1



System Devices

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

Avigilon NVR5 Standard. 48TB. 2U RACK MNT, WIN Server 2019 $30,968.00 1 $30,968.00

Switch (24-Port Network POE++, Gigabit, 4 ports @ 90W) $410.85 2 $821.70

Patch Panel (24 Port. 1RU. for Keystone Jacks) $45.00 2 $90.00

Cat6 Patch Cable (1ft, Yellow, Flexible, 24 pack) $31.00 2 $62.00

Keystone Jacks. RJ45 Cat6. (50 pack) $98.98 1 $98.98

UPS, 1500VA , 900W Rack-Mount, LCD $510.00 1 $510.00

Subtotal: $32,550.68

Installation Services

Product Description Qty

Labor Fee: Installation, Configuration and Activation 1

Subtotal: $1,248.00

Discounts

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

Discount-Security Discount - Server

Material or service discount.

($5,000.00) 1 ($5,000.00)

Subtotal: ($5,000.00)

Quote Summary Amount

System Devices $32,550.68

Installation Services $1,248.00

Discounts ($5,000.00)

Subtotal: $28,798.68

Shipping: $40.00

Total: $28,841.08

Customer understands that any additional fees that may be incurred to comply with all applicable building codes, zoning ordinances or any other permits needed
for installation is their responsibility. Further, reference to Plug and Play is defined herein as utilization of pre-existing cable distribution system for entire property,
as is. Delays or distractions caused by customer during installation or service may be billed additionally upon written order to customer. Any alteration or deviation
from above quoted specifications involving extra cost will be executed only upon written orders and will become an extra charge over and above this quotation.
This is the entire agreement, and no additional services or promise of performance is implied that is not contained herein.  Acceptance of quotation - all terms and
conditions as written are a part hereof and are binding upon the parties hereto. A.S.C. retains the right to substitute parts of equal or better value to complete a
functional system. Upon clients written approval A.S.C. may access client’s system(s) for virtual maintenance, trouble shooting and reporting functions. A.S.C.
shall have no liability for any personal injury, property damage or other loss based on any claim at all including a claim the product failed to perform.  A.S.C. will
bill after functional completion of the job and expect payment due within Net 30 days. The Company reserves the right to send the account to a third party for
collection. It is understood and agreed that The Company may do so for the entire amount remaining on the contract plus any collection costs incurred in the
process.  Note: Finance charges of 1.5% per month added to past due invoices. All products shown herein remain the property of A.S.C. until paid in full.  Prices
contained in this quotation shall be considered firm for a period of (30) days from the date of quotation unless otherwise stated herein. A.S.C. will charge a
restocking fee of 20% on all returned or cancelled merchandise. All purchases placed on a credit card for orders over $2,000. may incur a 2.5% service charge.
ATTORNEYS' FEES. In the event of any litigation or arbitration between the parties with respect to this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of litigation, as the court or tribunal may determine.

Page: 3 of 4Quote #002873 v1



Acceptance

Advanced Satellite Communications City of Farmington - Police

Adam Barber Bob Houhanisin

Signature / Name Signature / Name Initials

06/12/2025

Date Date

Page: 4 of 4Quote #002873 v1



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: June 16, 2025 

Item 
Number 

7P 

Submitted by:  City Manager 
 

Agenda Topic:  Amendment 1 to the assessing agreement with Oakland County.  
 

Proposed Motion: Approve amendment 1 to the 2023-2025 assessing agreement with Oakland 
County for sixty days. 
 

Background: On May 13, 2025 I received an email from the County that had our proposed 
Assessing Agreement attached. The contract was for three (3) years like the contracts before, 
except this one was 72% higher than the previous agreement. The timing of the notice did not 
give us much time to react to the increase because our budget had already gone to Council and 
the current contract ends on June 30, 2025. I learned that if I wrote to the County we might be 
able to get an extension as set forth in Section 10.7 of the current agreement. I wrote to the 
County and asked for a six (6) month extension, but the County only offered 60 days. I want this 
extra time to explore our options and help us make a more informed decision.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Materials:  First amendment to the contract between Oakland County and the City of 
Farmington for assessing services. 
 

 

















































FIRST AMENDMENT FOR OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION DIVISION ASSISTANCE 
SERVICES WITH THE CITY OF FARMINGTON, MICHIGAN 

Page 1  

FIRST AMENDMENT  
TO CONTRACT FOR OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION DIVISION ASSISTANCE 

FOR REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY ASSESSMENT ADMINISTRATION 
SERVICES 

WITH  THE CITY OF FARMINGTON, MICHIGAN 
 
This First Amendment to the Contract for Oakland County Equalization Division 
Assistance for Real and Personal Property Assessment Administration Services ("First 
Amendment") is made  and entered into between the COUNTY OF OAKLAND, a 
Michigan Constitutional and Municipal Corporation, whose address is 1200 N. Telegraph 
Rd., Pontiac, Michigan 48341 (hereafter, the “County”) and with the CITY OF 
FARMINGTON, a Michigan Constitutional and Municipal Corporation whose address is 
23600 Liberty Street, Farmington, Michigan 48335 (hereafter the "Municipality"). In this 
First Amendment the County and/or the Municipality may also be referred to individually 
as a “Party” or jointly as “Parties”. 
 
WHEREAS the Parties entered into a contract for Oakland County Equalization Division 
Assistance for Real and Personal Property Assessment Administration Services (the 
“Contract”) to be provided to the Municipality from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2025. 
 
WHEREAS the Parties desire to amend the contract to exercise the option to extend the 
Contract as set forth in Section 10.7 of the Agreement. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the parties mutually understand and agree as follows: 
 

1. The option to extend the Contract as set forth in Section 10.7 of the Contract 
is hereby exercised by the Parties.  As a result, the Contract shall not expire on June 30, 
2025, but shall continue and expire on August 31, 2025. 

2. The Contract shall remain in full force and effect, to the extent not amended 
in this First Amendment.  The Contract and this First Amendment constitute the entire 
agreement and understanding of the Parties and supersede all other prior written or oral 
understandings, communications or agreements between the Parties.  

3. This First Amendment may be signed in counterpart and signed through 
electronic or facsimile signatures and shall be treated for all intents and purposes as 
original signatures. 
 

{SIGNATURES CONTAINED ON FOLLOWING PAGES} 
  



FIRST AMENDMENT FOR OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION DIVISION ASSISTANCE 
SERVICES WITH THE CITY OF FARMINGTON, MICHIGAN 

Page 2  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Joe LaRussa, Mayor of the City of Farmington, hereby 
acknowledges that he has been authorized by a resolution of the Governing Body of 
the City of Farmington, a certified copy of which is attached, to execute this First 
Amendment on behalf of the Municipality and hereby accepts and binds the City of 
Farmington to the terms and conditions of this First Amendment. 
 
 

EXECUTED:   
Joe LaRussa, Mayor  
City of Farmington   
 
 
Date:   
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, David T. Woodward, Chairperson, Oakland County Board of 
Commissioners, hereby acknowledges that he has been authorized by a resolution of the 
Oakland County Board of Commissioners, a certified copy of which is attached, to execute 
this First Amendment on behalf of the Oakland County and hereby accepts and binds 
Oakland County to the terms and conditions of this First Amendment. 
 
 
 
EXECUTED: _____________________________ 
David T. Woodward, Chairperson Oakland County  
Board of Commissioners 
 
 
Date:  ___________________ 
 
 
 



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: June 16, 2025 

Item 
Number 

7Q 

Submitted by:  City Manager 
 

Agenda Topic:  Water and Sewer rate study 
 

Proposed Motion:  Approve contract with Municipal Analytics for a water and sewer rate study.  

Background: As we look into how we are going to resolve our water and sewer infrastructure 
issues we realize that no matter how we proceed, we need to have a water and sewer rate 
study preformed.  Therefore, we put an RFP (request for proposals) out and received five back. 
The costs ranged from $20,000 to $78,470.  I am recommending we engage Municipal Analytics 
from Ann Arbor in the amount of $21,375 because of their client list and their proximity to 
Farmington.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Materials:  List of bid results. 
 

 



Bid Opening - City of Farmington  
Water Sewer Rate Study 

Date: May 27, 2025 - Time: 3:00 p.m. 
 
 

  
Contractor/Vendor 

 

Time 
Received 

Bid 
Bond 
Yes/No 

 
Total Bid 
Amount 

 CROWE LLP 5/14/2025 
1:33 pm 

 $18-20K 
Base 
 

 RAFTELIS 5/14/2025 
9:38 PM 

 $39,312 
 

 STANTEC 5/14/2025 
9:13 PM 

 $78,470 
 

 MUNICIPAL 
ANALYTICS 

5/13/2025 
5:21 PM 

 $21,375 
 

 BENDZINSKI & 
CO 

5/7/2025   
6:42 PM 

 $23,000 
 

 



 

 

 
Farmington City Council 
Staff Report 
 

 
Council Meeting  
Date: June 16, 2025  

 
 

Informational 

Submitted by:  Melissa Andrade, Assistant to the City Manager 
 
 
Agenda Topic:  Minutes from City’s Boards and Commissions  
 
 
CIA: June minutes not yet posted 
DDA: May 2025 
Historical: April 2025 
Parking:  May 21 minutes not yet approved 
Pathways: May 2025 
Planning: April minutes not yet posted  
ZBA: May minutes not yet posted 
Library: April minutes not yet posted 
Commission on Aging: May minutes not yet approved  
Farmington/Farmington Hills Arts Commission: June meeting canceled 
Commission on Children, Youth and Families: May 2025 
Emergency Preparedness Committee: May 2025 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



DDA Board Meeting 

8:00AM Wednesday, May 7, 2025 

City Hall Conference Room 

23600 Liberty Street 

Farmington, MI 48335 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

MINUTES 

The meeting was called to order by Todd Craft at 8:04 AM. 

1. Roll Call 
Present: Karlyn Cassidy, Sean Murphy, Todd Craft, Tom Pascaris, Shawn Kavanagh, Johnna Balk, 
Donovan Singleton, Claire Perko (8:06) 
Absent: James McLaughlan 
Others Present: Jess Westendorf 
 
2. Approval of Consent Agenda 
a. Minutes: April 2, 2025 – DDA Board Regular Meeting 
b. Minutes: April 21, 2025 – DDA Board Special Meeting 
c. Minutes: April 24, 2025 – DDA Design Committee Meeting 
d. Minutes: May 1, 2025 – DDA Board Special Meeting 
 
Motion by Singleton, seconded by Pascaris to approve the items on the consent agenda. 
Motion passes unanimously. 
 
3. Approval of Regular Agenda 
Motion by Balk, seconded by Pascaris, to approve the items on the regular agenda. 
Motion passes unanimously. 
 
4. Public Comment 
Opened and closed by Todd Craft at 8:06. 
 
5. Executive Director Report by Jess Westendorf 
 
Executive Director Jess Westendorf shared updates on the completion of Mason’s Corner, 
noting the team is ready to celebrate with the community this Friday, and channel 4 was in town 
last week to cover the project. She also highlighted progress on the Downtown Master Plan and 
Parking Study, with drone flyovers planned in June to help guide decisions. Thomas street study 



and north lot study are underway to be informed by parking study and master plan. Jess 
mentioned the Farmers Market opened strong, event season is underway with an excellent kick 
off during Ladies Night Out. Engineering/Design team is preparing bid documents for the Art 
Park Promenade. She noted the end of the public art moratorium is in sight after recent City 
Council discussions, and thanked the board for their support through a busy and exciting spring. 
Budget season is here. Amendments with no surprise are later in the packet. 
 
6. Approval of Pay Order #3 Warren Construction for Masons Corner 
Motion by Perko, seconded by Singleton to approve Pay Order #3 in the amount of $77,776.00 
to Warren Construction for Masons Corner. Motion passes unanimously via roll call. 

Ayes: 8 – Karlyn Cassidy, Sean Murphy, Todd Craft, Tom Pascaris, Shawn Kavanagh, 
Johnna Balk, Donovan Singleton, Claire Perko 
Absent: 1 – James McLaughlan 
Nays: 0 

 
7. Consideration to Approve Amended FY 2024-2025 Budget. 
Motion by Singleton, seconded by Pascaris to amend the DDA 2024/25 Budget as shown in the 
projected column of the attached report. Motion passes unanimously via roll call. 

Ayes: 8 – Karlyn Cassidy, Sean Murphy, Todd Craft, Tom Pascaris, Shawn Kavanagh, 
Johnna Balk, Donovan Singleton, Claire Perko 
Absent: 1 – James McLaughlan 
Nays: 0 

 
8. Committee Updates 

• Promotions update by Shawn Kavanagh: “How Do You Farmington?” campaign, social 
content, MetroMode contract, Ladies Night recap. 

• Organization update by Sean Murphy: Volunteer strategy, planning for May 9, and 
discussed name badges. 

• Business Development update by Donovan Singleton: Extended hours outreach 
underway. Discussion of Syndicate extension in progress. 

• Design update by Claire Perko: Thomas Street & North Lot plans, Art Park construction. 
• Public Art by Claire Perko / Johnna Balk: City Hall call for art, tour concepts, will meet to 

discuss ongoing program. Westendorf added conversations regarding Midwest 
Sculpture Initiative. 

 
8. Other Business 

• Board discussed forming a hiring committee to select new DDA Project Manager. Hiring 
committee will consist of: Jess Westendorf (lead), Shawn Kavanagh, James McLaughlan. 

• Discussed leadership transition rollout and communication strategy for Jess. Discussed 
updating board headshots through Focal Point. 

 



9. Board Comment 
• Crosswalk/traffic signal discussion at Farmington Road 
• Coordinated messaging for DDA elevator speech so board members are all consistently 

telling the story. 
 
10. Adjournment 
Motion by Singleton, seconded by Perko to adjourn the meeting. Motion passes unanimously. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:07 AM. 



HISTORICAL COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 
Minutes 

April 24, 2025 
 

1. Meeting was called to order at 7pm 
 

2. Roll call: Laura Myers, Jill Keller, Robert Senn, Rudy Wengorovius, Brandon Porterfield, Kevin 
Russom 

 
3. Approval of agenda: Rudy motioned to approve and Brandon seconded 

 
4. Public Comment: members from Friends of the Warner Manion attended - highlighted was the 

success of history day in the schools; discussion around barn building and their history; historic 
building preservation; digitizing records; encouraging the website Michigan memories; America 
250 projects looking for untold stories; Clarenceville cemetery is the next cemetery tour. 
 

5. Approval of minutes from 2/27/2025: Robert motioned to approve and Rudy seconded, all ayes 
 

6. Financial report: committee received it and there has been no activity. Kevin Parkins asked the 
city manager, David Murphy for $2500 to be used for historical committee needs (general fund) 
and David Murphy approved it. 

 
7. Warner Mansion activities:  

a. No updates are known, on-going repairs continue 
 

8. New Business: 
a. Update Historical Commission Bylaws – making some edits to the bylaws 

i. Suggested changes: 
• Assist with mansion activities as needed 
• Change the meeting requirements to meeting at least once per quarter 
• Change 2.5 to state we only need to meet once a year, May, on the 

financials and report to the City 
• Change 4.3 to increase the expenditure to $1000 for roll call vote 

ii. Laura will type up the changes to the bylaws and send them out for approval 
then to legal 

 
9. Old Business:  

a. Porch party at the mansion pre-founders festival  
i. Robert needs to get the 501c3 from the Friends of Warner Mansion for Busch’s. 

Busch’s agreed to donate popsicles and ice cream sandwiches 
ii. Jill will reach out to the parents of the kids that dressed up as historical figures 

of Farmington to see if they would be interested in participating 
iii. Jill talked to the Joe LaRussa (mayor) and he has agreed to give a speech that 

night 



iv. Use the front windows at the mansion to advertise the party 
v. Laura will communicate to Julie Laws about our plans 

vi. Laura will check with Farmington Hills on getting a tent, table and chairs 
vii. We need to think about what games we will have 

 
b. Robert will reach out to Rolling Stoves to see if they would be interested in participating 

at any of our events 
 

c. Historic District survey –  
i. some pictures were lost and have to be re-taken 

ii. Kevin Parkins was going to reach out to Farmington Hills on how they set up 
their webpage, Rudy will follow-up with Kevin on this 
 

10. Correspondence and communications: stock statement was received  
 

11. Commission Comments: none 
 

12. Adjournment at 8:25pm by Laura  
 
 



 
 

FARMINGTON PATHWAYS COMMITTEE 
 
 

 7:00 p.m.                   AGENDA          May 14, 2025 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER Chairperson called the meeting to order at 7:06pm 
 

2. ROLL CALL Joe VanDerZanden, Heather Davies, Jamie Palmisano,  
Maria Taylor, Kevin Daniels, Dave Hearing 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA Motion to approve by Maria and supported by Kevin, 
approved unanimously. 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

 
a. MEETING MINUTES, APRIL 9, 2025 Motion to approve by Maria and supported 

by Tim, approved unanimously. 
 

5. MONTHLY INSPO How to fix dangerous overbuilt streets via YouTube 
 

6. OLD BUSINESS 
 

a. GRAND RIVER PEDESTRIAN CROSSING SURVEY UPDATE 
529 respondents  
Respondents comments reviewed 
Reviewed MDOTs Crosswalk Evaluation Procedures 
Top Five Crosswalks 

1. Cass 
2. Mayfield 
3. Gill Road 
4. Entrance near Chatham Hills Apartments 
5. Lake Way 

Identified and moving forward with the City (Gazebo Park,Power Road and 
School Street) 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. ANY NEW TARGET AREAS? 
i. Grand River Streetscape 

Hole in sidewalk pavers near Farmington Garage 
   Manhole cover dip in bike lane on Power Road and Valley View  

 Asking Chris to address issue with Chuck at DPW 
 

b. ANY NEW CITY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS? 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENT N/A 
 

9. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENT Past issues have been address, on Farmington 
Road and Folsom (sidewalk) 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 8:00pm Motion to approve by Jamie and supported by Kevin, 
approved unanimously. 

 
 

Next meeting:  JUNE 4, 2025 



MEETING MINUTES 
FARMINGTON/FARMINGTON HILLS 

COMMISSION ON CHILDREN, YOUTH, & FAMILIES 
 

May 1, 2025 
Community Room, Farmington Hills City Hall, 

31555 W. Eleven Mile Rd., Farmington Hills, MI. 48336 
 
1) Call to Order 

A. Meeting called to order at 6:10pm 
B. Quorum announced - yes 

a. Members present: Marie S., Bria L., Tammy L., Sharon S., Alisa V., Bhumika M.  
b. Member absent: Jordon S., Rod W., Tanya N., Brian S. 
c. Liaisons present: Marla Parker, Matthew Gale, Kristel Sexton 
d. Others present: NA 

 
2) Approval of Agenda 

A. Moved by Sharon 
B. Seconded by Tammy 
C. Motion passes  

 
3) Approval of June 6, 2024 Minutes 

A. The following edits were proposed: 
a. NA 

B. Moved by Tammy 
C. Seconded by Bria 
D. Motion passes  

 
4) Youth Division Update 

A. ASYP reports that two bus drivers have been hired and are getting certified. 
B. Police Department has done a safety and emergency preparedness training for the staff  
C. Have an escape room activity planned 
D. HAWK outdoor courts are open 
E. Camp enrollment is 73% filled 
F. Activities coming up; Family camp out June 7-8, Kick off to Summer 6/12 and Mother 

son night in August. 
G. Marla complimented the activities at the “take your child to work day” events at the 

City/HAWK 
 
5) Issues Committee Update 

A. Volunteer event is set for 5/12/25 @ 7pm. Sharon and Marla updated the group about 
the event and the people who have been nominated. City will send someone to take 
photos. Commission members should arrive at 7pm to help and greet others.  



B. Earth Day painting went very well. The two tables were full of painters during the entire 
event and three bags of rocks were painted.  The Nature center is willing to do rocks for 
the garden this summer. An allocation for supplies was voted on and $400 was allocated 
Alisa/Bria. Jordon is planning the May panting event.  

C. Career Night follow up – Farmington schools also does an event and the group discussed 
working with them or making a change in the commissions event to create a different 
model and not duplicate events.  

 
6) New Business and Announcements 

A. Tammy had a fun announcement to share with the group.  
B. Krystal shared upcoming library events; AAPI this weekend 5/3/25, Summer Reading 

begins 6/1/25 – everyone who signs up gets a free book, Schools Out Celebration @ 
Farmington Library 6/12/25 12-3pm.  

C. Discussed and planned for participation in the City of FH Police and Fire open house next 
September. Allocated funds for use at that event. $100 – Tammy/Bria 

D. Final meeting/planning event will be in June. $300 allocated for event Tammy/Sharon.  
 
7) Public Comments 

A. NA 
 
8) Adjournment 

A. Moved by Alisa 
B. Seconded by Sharon 
C. Motion passes  
D. Meeting adjourned at 7:00pm 

 



Approved 

EPC Meeting Minutes 
Farmington Hills / Farmington Emergency Preparedness Commission 

May 5, 2025 – 5:00pm 
Farmington Hills City Hall – Community Room 

31555 W. 11 Mile Rd. 
Farmington Hills, MI 48336 

248-473-1800  www.fhgov.com 

 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER By; Chair Sweeney at 5:06 PM.   

 

MEMBERS PRESENT; Sweeney, Avie, Schertel, Thomas, Igwe, Card, Sloan, 

Ciaramitaro, Forshee, Dilts 

 

MEMBERS ABSENT; Tyler, Dixon, Hopfe 

 

OTHERS PRESENT; Friess (FPS), Piggott (FHPD), Pankow (FHFD), Yuskowatz 

(YMCA). Aldred (FH City Council)  

 

OTHERS ABSENT; None 

 

CITIZENS PRESENT: None 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA; Motion by Avie, seconded by Schertel to approve the 

agenda as submitted.   

Motion carried unanimously.  

 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES; Motion by Avie and seconded by Schertel to 

approve the March 3, 2025 meeting minutes as submitted.   

Motion Carried unanimously.  

 

BUDGET REPORT; EPC Budget for 2025 is still $2,500. 

• The procedure for using funds with the City’s new accounting system needs to be 

ascertained.   

http://www.fhgov.com/


Approved 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS; 

• EPC Literature printing of 100 sets. Discussion of where literature could be printed 

and how the invoice would be paid.  Suggestion that additional sets be printed for 

upcoming events. 

• Orange Literature folders.  Previously folders were obtained from the city. 

 

NEW BUSINESS; 

• Election of Commission Officers; Secretary 

o Card has volunteered to serve as EPC Secretary 

o Chair Sweeney asked if there were any other candidates, no one responded 

o Card accepted nomination 

o Motion by Sweeney to appoint Card to as EPC Secretary 

o Motion carried unanimously 

• Introductions of New Commissioner: Dilts (F);  

• Costick Center Veterans Resource Fair, May 15, 9:00 AM to Noon 

o The EPC wants to have a booth but needs to confirm with the Fair organizer. 

Sweeney and Avie will staff the booth. 

• City of Farmington Memorial Day Parade, May 26. 

o Freiss stated that FPS has the event staffed.  The EPC can contact Sgt. Wren 

or Sgt. Hawkins to see if they need support. 

• Farmington Founders Festival, July 17 to 19. 

o The EPC does want to have a presence at the festival distributing preparedness 

literature.  

o K. Ciaramitaro reported that EPC would likely not be able to use space in 

Corwell’s booth like previous years. 

o The EPC does not have a tent, but one can be rented. 

o A signup schedule for EPC Commissioners to man the booth needs to be 

setup.  The use of the app Signup Genius was suggested. 

o Parade  



Approved 

 Avie is coordinating the EPC’s parade support and several 

commissioners have volunteered to assist.  Commissioners can contact 

Avie to assist with the parade. 

 Notices have gone out and groups/organizations are signing up to 

participate in the parade. 

• Costick Center Seniors Health Fair, October 7, 10:00 AM to 2:00 PM; 

o The EPC plans to have a booth. 

• Monthly CPR/STB training is available monthly at FHFD Station #4.  Ciaramitaro 

recommended hosting a train the trainer CPR course, Pankow agreed. 

• Oakland County Sky warn training.  Sweeney attended the class in Rochester Hills 

April 26 and encouraged commissioners to attend the class next time it is available. 

• The FHPD Citizens Academy is in process and Commissioner Thomas has been 

attending. 

 

LIAISON REPORTS; 

• N. Yuskowatz (YMCA); Yuskowatz announced that she would no longer be the 

YMCA liaison.  She was thanked by the EPC for her service. 

• J. Piggott (FHPD); Provided a summary of recent incidents in Farmington Hills that 

involved FHPD response.  There will be a promotion ceremony for the several Police 

Department staff on Friday, May 9. 

• B. Pankow (FHFD); Discussed recent incidents that required the response of the 

FHFD.  The construction of the new Emergency Operations Center (EOC) at Station 

#5 in ongoing. 

• R. Friess (FPS); The Farmington Public Safety Department will have a 

commissioning ceremony for a new fire truck on Tuesday, May 13.  Friess announced 

that he is retiring from the Farmington FPS in May and will no longer be the liaison.  

A new FPS liaison with the EPC attending future meetings. He was thanked by the 

EPC for his service. 

• J. Aldred (FH City Council); Discussed after incident support for responders and the 

community impacted by the incident and will be looking into resources that can 

provide physical and mental health support in the aftermath of an incident. 



Approved 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS; 

• This item was tabled until the June 2, 2025 public meeting.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT; None 

 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS; 

• R. Avie said that due to other obligations he may need to reduce his level of 

involvement with the EPC.  A decision regarding EPC involvement will be made in 

the coming months. 

• S. Thomas has been participating the Farmington Hills Citizens Police Academy. 

• M. Sweeney said that he will be contacting commissioners about initiatives/projects 

to advance the EPC’s mission. 

 

NEXT MEETING DATE; The next public meeting Monday, June 2, 2025 at 5:00 PM 

in the Community Room of the Farmington Hills City Hall.  

 

ADJOURNMENT; Motion by Thomas, seconded by Forshee adjourn.   

Motion carried unanimously  

Chair Sweeney adjourned the meeting at 6:12 PM. 

 

Minutes taken by Secretary Card. 


	1 6.19.2025 REGULAR AGENDA
	4Aa 5.05.25 Special Meeting Minutes
	4Ab 5.05.25 Regular Meeting Minutes
	4Ac 5.19.25 Special Meeting Minutes
	4Ad 5.19.2025 Regular Meeting Minutes
	4b Monthly Payments Report May 2025
	4C May 2025 Public Safety Report
	4D Abhijit Nikhade Board or Review
	4E Beautification Committee Reappointments
	6C Staff Report - Public Hearing  25-26
	7Aa Staff Report - Adopt FY 2025-2026 Budget and Millage Rates
	7Ab Budget Adoption Resolution 25-26
	7Ba Staff Report - 2025 Refuse Recycling User Charge
	7Bb Resolution - Refuse Recycling User Charge 2025-2026
	7Ca Staff Report - 2025-26 Water and Sewer Rates 5.7%
	7Cb Resolution to Amend Water and Sewer Rates 25-26
	STATE OF MICHIGAN COUNTY OF OAKLAND CITY OF FARMINGTON

	7Cc Chapter 11 Fee Schedule 2025 W&S
	7Da Staff Report - Amend Pay Plan and Administrative Policy 2025-26
	7Db Resolution - Amend Pay Plan and Administrative Manual 2025-26
	7Dc Non-Union Pay Plan - 3% increase
	7Ea Council Staff Report DDA Proposed FY 25-26 June 16
	7Eb DDA Proposed Budget FY 25-26 & Resolution
	7Ec 25_sadroll_21-92-4_20
	7Fa Staff Report FY 2025-26 Joint Agency Budgets
	7Fb Resolution - Joint Agency Budgets, FY 2025-26
	7Ga Amend CIA 2024-25 Budget staff report
	7Gb Resolution - CIA Budget Amendment 1 FY 2024-25
	7Gc CIA Proposed Budget 25-26
	7Ha Amend BRA 24-25 staff report
	7Hb Resolution - BRA Budget Amendment 1 FY 2024-25
	7Hc BRA Proposed Budget 25-26
	7Ia Staff Report - Budget Amendment #9
	7Ib Budget Amendment #9
	7Ja 25.06.16 Crack Sealing
	7Jb Bid Opening 3.5.25
	7Jc Crack Seal Progress 2023-2024 Not Completed
	7Jd K&B Asphalt Sealcoating Inc
	7Ka 25.06.16 Sidewalk Improvement Program
	7Kb 2025 Sidewalk Program_Recommendation of Award_5-7-25.ce
	7Kc 2025-06-04 2025 Farmington Sidewalk - m2 notes
	Total

	7La 25.06.16 SOCPWA Mutual Aid Staff Report
	7Lb SOCPWA Mutual Aid Authority Agreement_May 2025
	7Ma 25.06.16 Warner Home Grant Funding Exterior PA No.3
	7Mb GOV WARNER MANSION FINAL
	7N 6 sets of turnout gear  FY 24-25
	7Oa Avigilon Server 2025
	7Ob Bid Opening Form Water Sewer Rate Study
	7Ob New server quote 2025.2
	7Pa Staff Report on the Extention of the Assessing Agreement with Oakland County
	7Pb 5.29.2025 Farmington Assessing Services
	7Pc FARMINGTON_Fully Executed Contract
	7Pd Amendment 1 to 23-25 Assessing Contract City of Farmington
	7Qa  Staff Report on the Water and Sewer Rate Study Contract
	7Qb Bid Opening Form
	9 Board & Commission Minutes
	9a Board & Commission Minutes
	9b May_7_2025_DDA_Minutes
	The meeting was called to order by Todd Craft at 8:04 AM.
	1. Roll Call
	2. Approval of Consent Agenda
	3. Approval of Regular Agenda
	4. Public Comment
	5. Executive Director Report by Jess Westendorf
	6. Approval of Pay Order #3 Warren Construction for Masons Corner
	7. Consideration to Approve Amended FY 2024-2025 Budget.
	8. Committee Updates
	8. Other Business
	9. Board Comment
	10. Adjournment

	9c Historic Comm Mtng (04-24-2025)
	9d 5.14.2025 PATHWAYS MEETING MINUTES - Copy
	9e CYF Minutes 5-1-25
	9f epc-05-05-2025-approved




